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Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
Runwal Developers Limited (formerly “Runwal Developers Private Limited”)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Runwal Developers Limited (the
“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries,-(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the
“Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2025, and their consolidated Profit and other comprehensive income,
their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with these ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Kolkata, Delhi NCR, Mumbai, Chennai, Bangalore, Pune & Raipur



° M B2 402B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor
ln l 0. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai - 400 013 (India)

+91(0) 22 6662 5537/ 5538
mumbai@singhico.com

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, compare with the financial information of the subsidiaries audited by another auditor, to the extent
it relates to these entities and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed and based on the financial information provided by the management,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the other information included in the above report, if we conclude that there is material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board
of Directors. The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows
and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the

companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
“operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. .

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud- or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a

Kolkata, Delhi NCR, Mumbai, Chennai, Bangalore, Pune & Raipur



° ° B2 402B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor
Zn Z 0. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai - 400 013 (India)

+91(0) 22 6662 5537/ 5538
mumbai@singhico.com

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based
on our audit.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group, to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group, to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditor. The financial information of other entities, included in the Consolidated Financial
Results, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 4 (four) subsidiaries,
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 3,60,634.94 lakhs as at March 31, 2025, and total
revenues of Rs 34,183.00 lakhs and net cash outflow of Rs 130.54 lakhs for the year ended on that date.
These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial
statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management.
Our opinion on the_consolidated financial statements,.in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
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included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act,
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the repori(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect our reliance on the work done
by and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph.
We give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit on the consideration of report of the other
auditors separate financial statements and other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the other
matter paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated balance sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiaries, incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

g. The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2025.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries as noted in ‘other matters’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated
financial position of the Group, in its consolidated financial statements — Refer Note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements. _.
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fi. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiaries, incorporated in India, during the year ended
March 31, 2025, in accordance to the provision of the Act, and rules made there under.

iv. (@) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, respectively that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 62(5) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries, to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries,
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, respectively that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 62(6) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries, from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries, shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed-by the auditors of the subsidiaries, which are
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company or its Subsidiaries,
incorporated in India
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and based on the other auditor’s reports of
its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have used accounting software for maintaining their respective books of account for
the year ended March 31, 2025, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we and the other auditors of the subsidiaries did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, and the audit trail has been preserved
by the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 302049E

—

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No.123314

UDIN: 25123314BMLLBH1146

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05 September 2025
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Limited (formerly “Runwal Developers Private Limited"))

According to information and explanations given to us, following companies, which are included in consolidated
financial statements, have certain remarks included in their reports under Companies (Auditors Report) Order,
2020 ("CARQ") which have been reproduced as per the requirement of the Guidance Note on CARO:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the
auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting under
CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Holding Company, we report that in respect of
those companies where audits have been completed under section 143 of the Act, there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies included in the
consolidated financial statements except for the following:

Sr. | Name CIN | Holding | Clause number of
No. Company/ the CARO report
Subsidiary which contains
qualification or
adverse remarks
1 Runwal Developers | U70100MH1988PTC046631 | Holding o iii(f), vii(b), ix(e)
Limited
2 | R Mall Developers U45201MH2006PTC163273 | Subsidiary i(c), iii(f), vii(b)
Private Limited
3 | Runwal Construction U41001MH2023PTC406024 | Subsidiary 1i(e), iii(F), vii(b)
Private Limited
4 | R Retail Ventures U70200MH2018PTC313615 | Subsidiary iii(f), vii(b), xvii
Private Limited
5 | Histyle Retalil Private | U70109MH2019PTC319330 Subsidiary xvii, Xix
Limited
6 | Aethon Developers U70109MH2019PTC364477 | Subsidiary xvii .
Private Limited
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Further, according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of the following companies
incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, the CARO report relating to them has
not been issued by their auditors. Following are the basic details of the same:

Holding _C_ompanyl
| Subsidiary as on
31%t march 2025

. Subsidiary

| Subsidiary

Sr. | Name | CIN

No.
1 Runwal Retail Private Limited | U68100MH2024PTC429406
2 Galleria Retail Private Limited U70200MH2019PTC319329

'3 | R Siddhatva Developers Private Limited | U68100MH2023PTC414680
4 Runwal Holding Estates Private Limited U68100MH2024PTC428937
5 | Runwal Hotels Private Limited U55101MH2025PTC442221

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 302049E

Milind Agal
Partner

Membership No.123314
UDIN: 25123314BMLLBH1146

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05 September 2025
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report on the internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Runwal Developers Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries (Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), (read together with
the paragraph of other matter as specified in Annexure A) as of that date

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The management and the Board of Directors of holding company and its subsidiaries are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding and its subsidiaries’ internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial controls over financial reporting and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controis with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and
whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors of

subsidiaries are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Group.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A Holding Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Holding company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Holding company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Holding company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Holding company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Holding company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
consolidated. financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consclidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Group,
which are incorporated in India, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financia! controls system
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal consolidated financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by such Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it
relates to three subsidiaries which is audited by other auditor, is based on the corresponding reports of such
auditors. Further four subsidiaries of group which are consolidated and report under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls is not applicable to it.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 302049E

-~
Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No.123314

UDIN: 25123314BMLLBH1146

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05 September 2025
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{c) Non - Controlling Interests 45 131.63 f 239.39
Total Equity ) . 3,21,537.0¢9 3,07,787.73
UABILTIES -
Non-cumrent Liabilities e - B .
g} Financial Liabilities
{i} Bomowings o . 25 3,17,288.20 2.46,991.70
(i} _Lease Liabilities 26 117.91 -
B (b) Provisions - . - e . - 27 297 60 . 29631
{c) _Deferred Tax Liability {net) e 28 . 76,768. 96 | 79,785.28
Total Non-current Liabllities o | 3,94,472.67 | 3,27,073.29_
Current Liabilitles . .
{a) Financial Liabilities e e |
(i) Borrowings . 2 | 13,860.77 15,085.86
(i} Lease Liabilities | 30 163.06 102.91
bbbb (i) Trade Payables 31 % - -
el = - total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises e 433504 662.08
-___total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . L~ 18,220.69 19,521.34
{iv] Other Financial Liabilities 32 ] 48,528.2 27 18,163.82
Other Current Liabilities 33 3,50, 889‘8_8 - _2,78,680.31
. _Provisions 34 ; 2" 227.63
T T{d} T Cument Tox Liabilities y | 47.006.77 4023075 °
__ _Tofal Current Liabilities =N N N = = | - e ] 4,83,256.50 3.72,674.70
Total Liabilities o e e e _"‘ 8.77,729.17 6,99,747.99
Total Equity and Liabilifles e 11,99.266.26 10,07,635.72
Material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Director:
For Singhi & Co. Runwal Developers Limited
Chartered Accountants : U70100MH1988PLC0456631
No.: 302049E Y,
Sal ep Runwal arma
Managing Director Dlrecior
Partner DIN: 00068584 DIN: 053204
Membership No.: 123314 i
*—h‘___
Ashok G. Darak Chcru Patki
Chied Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACS: A18140



Runwal Developers Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Place : Mumbai
Date: September 05, 2025

Place : Mumbai
Date: September 05, 2025

Tin Lg_khg
. For the year ended For the year ended -
Particulars e Mofes March 31,2025 -c; 31,2024 ‘]
Income
Fevenue from Of 35 11632349 1 - 53943.77
Othet iriceme & 3,652.98 4,880.86
Total income 11997647 58824463
Expenses - =
e SOSLOf cOnstruction and development expenses. . . _ NS S 1o7A19.08 ... 78039.03
Changes in inventories of finished goods, consiruction work in progress and stock-in-trade _(61,753.40)
Employee Benefits Expenses 2,725.12
____Finance Costs a0 12,255.76
_ Depreciation and Amortisation Expense ] 41 11.560.25; 10,323.90
Other Expenses e . . i 42 17,105.32 % 16,483.64
Total Expenses = e s e o me e ey mew oy e g m e o _“ I £ 1,02,505.41 58,074.05
Profit/(Loss) e PI! oss) of Joint Venlture and exceplionalitems R ! 1747106 .
Share of profit/(loss) of Joint ventures and associate — i 48 EE
Profit/(Loss) before excepiional items and tax 17,471.06
Exceptional ltems 3
Profit/(loss) before tax 17471106
Jax (Expense}/Credlt S - m— L . =5,
_____ Current fax e . L | (6789.49) (275880
Short / (Excess) Provision of Tax trelating 1o earlier years ~ ! . = -
Deferred fax (Expense)/Credit 3,060.15 5,946.12
Total Tax (Expense)/Credit {3.729.34) 3,187.32
_Profit / (Loss) for the year (net of tax) (A). 13,741.72 1.20.362.79
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
(@) __ _ ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement Gain /{Loss) on defined benefit plan 1022
N Income Tax Impact i2.58]:
Other Comprehansive Income /(loss) that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent perlods 744
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
~7 share of other comprehensive income in associate and joint venture . T i > -
Total Other Comprehensive Income forthe year(a+b)(B) _ i 7.64 13.26
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B) e - : 13,749.36 . 1.20.376.05
Profit/(loss) for the year atiributable to: = el m . WMe” - T .
Equily holders of the parent 13.737.08 1,20,362.95
— Non - Controlling Interest e = 4.64 (0.16)
“Other Comprehensive Income for the year atiributable to: —_— = [—— .
Equity holders of the parent Zé4 13.23
Non - Controlling Interest - o e e '—— 0.03
Total Comprehensive income for the year attributable fo:
T T Equity holders of the parent 13,744.72 1.20,376.18
. Non - Confrolling Inferest B N o T S L "3'._6_,2 ::;»*::—m
Earning Per Equity Share (EPS) . g '
Basic and diluted, computed on the basis of profit for the year athibutable to equity shareholders of the Parent 3 313 27.46
Company (%) (Face Value ¥ 1 Per Share) . :
Fﬁa&?&i;&?&;ﬁng policies — | 2
The accompanying notes are an Intearal part of these consclidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directgs
For Singhi & Co. Runwal Developers Limited r
Chartered Acgountants IN: U70100MH1988PLC046631
Firm Regigtrat “n No.: 302049E
P ’deep Runwal Sa Sharma
“ il gal Managing Director Director
Partner DiN: 00068584 DIN: 053204 M
Membership No.: 123314 m’
A— % Uﬁ‘w
L]
Ashok G. Darak Charu Patki
Chied Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACS: A18140



Runwal Developers Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2025

% in Lakhs
for the year ended . For the year ended
LTI March 31, 2025 - March 312024
(A) Cash flows from operating activities
= I 17.471.06 1,17.175.47

LSS Lol Sl 11,560.25
of roperly, Plant and Equipment (net) o e e e e S———— (44.06)
_Profit on sale/ redemption of investments . L {49.83; _
Share of Eroflt/(loss) o T

int ventures ond QssOC

- - 2 272. 07

- a0

1235 . _._317008

{16341, . T
s e - mtr o s .58.57

N J 'nf Developmem‘ Amangement
( 004 72
33006
L Jince IS - s,

inancelncome_ . . .. (199374 (204108

inance cost 17,262.95

Dividend Income {0.20]

__Sundry balances written off
Sundry balances written back

(643.38]

... Provision for Graiuity & Leave Encashment e ~ ® 91.16
_Operating profit . | 4522479 23,359.36
Changes in working capitak A — T T
Increase /[decrease) in Trade Payables 2,426.81 (242.93)
Increase /{decrease) in Other Current and Non-current Financial Liabilities _ A 2763204 (23, )
Increase /{decrease) in Other Current Liabilities e - i 7321434 8620814
Increase /{decrease) in Provisions R _ — ’ i _{26.94),
- AIncrease)/decrease inTrade Receivables . L e e 235980
. \Increase) /decrease in inventories = . . o — (63,153.9¢)
{Increase)/decregse in Other Current and Non-current Assets — 1] {13,759.37)
(Increase)/decrease in Current and Non-current Financial Assets 1,642.84
Changes due to Working Capital movements . (68,508.73) (10,101.47)
_Cash flows from operaiing activities (23,283.9 13,257.89
Less : Income fax (Paid]) _— {7,578015) - [4,731.45)
Net cash flows from operafing activities (A)_ __ _ . . (36859.09) 85244

(B) Cash flows from investing activities = i I | . ”
Payment towards property, plant and equipment, Capital Work In Progress, intangible assets and Intangible assets under {2,.310.84) {2,601.69)
develotiment

Pcyment fowards purchase of investment propert cnd inv operty under constructions T | {15,177. 51) e 10,805.39)
__._Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equi . = e e 1_65._(}(_) e
—Froceeds from sale Of vestmen e e e ] 3.201.60 .
Purchase of equity shares of company other that subsidiary _ e (300.51) }
Redemption of optionally convertible debentures 7.00000 =

Payment towards acquisition of subsidiaries =
Investment in Preference Shares and units of mutual funds (net)
Redemption of units of mutual funds {net)

.. Loans and advances to related parties and others (given)/repaid (net) e B W o= M 733500 18727540
Redemption/(increase) of bank deposits - e S T W o - B {10,434.30): (1.668.10)
Interest received (finance income) 62336 ¢ 1,826.69
Net cash flows from investing activities (B) - J _ (9.818.72) (52,217.20)
(C) _Cash flows from financing activities - e U] ..
- Interestpaid L (Besass o (20,15390)-
Lease rental and interesi pcyment . {138.41) e (58.911
__ Proceeds from Non-current borowings 26016873 11952276
Repayment of Non-current bomowings e o I | (1.92.180.56) —
Proceeds / {Repayment] of Current borrowings (net) p— . & 5 e - - I e {995.40] 84,167.05]
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) e I ] 3819968 1514290
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) e _— I (247813 86)
_Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning ofthe year T | 8799.28 . .%A408.80_
Addlhon on t;_gc}uni of acquisition of sy?f_l_ . ] 5 27.938.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the rear | 632115 8,799.28

Q

-~
<<{ MUMBAI |
= S

@ s



Runwal Developers Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2025

T in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
i A = - Mearch 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Notesto Cashtiow Statement: e e
.Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: e, Em s e mE o m g
- . 773543 o BBE01S
- . e 11,414.28) [60.87]
6,321.15 8,799.28
Notes:
i The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method'’ set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows.
(i) Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, are given below:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 20
Balance at the beginning of the year* 2,62,016.69 72,495.21
Cash flow (nel) ' | 6699277 3535571
Business combinatior . 1BAlESTT
Non cash changes o o 725.23 =
Balance at the end of the year* © 3.29,734.69 2,62,016.69
* Balance does not include book overdraft
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Runwal Developers Limited
IN: U70100MH1988PLC0444631

7
r/ F leep Runwal Saridy Sharma
“Milind Agal Managing Director Director
Partner DIN: 00068584 DIN: 05320421 *
Membership No.: 123314 !
Ashck G. Darak Charu Patki
Chied Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACS: A18140
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Dote: September 05, 2025 Date: September 05, 2025
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Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to consolidation financial statements

for the year 2025

1. General information

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Runwal Developers Limited (the Holding
Company) together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as The Group) and its joint venture and associate
entity for the year ended March 31, 2025.

The Holding Company is a private limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiciled in India having
its registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, 5th Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti
Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2025, were authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors vide Board meeting held on dated September 05, 2025.

Material Accounting Policies and notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve as a
means of informative disclosure and a guide to better understanding of the financial position of the Group.
Recognising this purpose, the Group has disclosed only such policies and notes which fairly present the needed
disclosures.

2. Summary of material accounting policies
I. Basis of preparation
a. Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133
of the Companies Act 2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of
Schedule lil to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to this financial statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and
measurement bases summarized as below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the
periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements, except where the Group has applied certain
accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

b. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
e Assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value

¢ Certain Financial instruments are measured at fair value (refer gc‘e_-‘oun_’r_ing policy r Q_r_c;irlg firancial
instruments) RAGELE ﬁ-@%\
N\ R
/*‘0/ O\ [ &N
Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting 'Ok "f’,, . =
B\ E 3\
(i) Subsidiaries ?&,gd.. S -
..-"M._ACE--

Subsidiaries include all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity, when the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect the
returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the investee.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like fransactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that Group members’ statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. intercompany fransactions, balances and
unrealized gains or losses on fransactions between Group companies are eliminated.



Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to consolidation financial statements

for *he ended March 31 2025

Non-confrolling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Balance Sheet.
respectively.

(ii) Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates or Joint Ventures are all entities over which the Group has significant influence or Joint control but not
control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights or where
decisions over the relevant activities are unanimous in case of joint venture. Investments in associates and joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting after initially being recognized at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the excess of cost of investment over the proportionate share in equity
of the associate/ joint venture as at the date of acquisition of stake is identified as goodwill or capital reserve as
the case may be and included in the carrying value of the investment in the associate/ joint venture.

The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate
or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and associate, or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associate or joint venture. If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint
venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint

venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit and loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting year as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate or joint venture and ifs carrying value and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate or
joint venture' in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount af.the associate

or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and ’r!'_.ué"wi'r vdi;@"o\f the retaingqeve Nt and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated s'rofement’cﬁ.profi‘r ond-lggs. {/ W
| \ [~
o | & < MUMBAIE
A WS
d. Current and non-current classification \Con S ) NI
: f@dACcO\),- é’ Q

The group presents assefs and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Shéet based on currerit/ non-current
classification.



Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to consolidation financial statements

th veor ended Maich 2025

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii} It is due to be sefttled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Group's real estate operations varies from project to project
depending on the size of the project, type of development, project complexities and related approvals.
Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the
operating cycle of the project. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on a period of twelve months.

e. Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (*INR") which is also the functional currency
of the Group. All values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

ll. Use of accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management of the Group is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors

—that-areconsidered to be relevant-Actual results may differ from these estimates; The estimates and underlying ™

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the financial statements.

Following are the key areas of judgements, assumptions and estimates whieft: hqv(@ i|gn|f|copj—&ﬂ&c\ on the

amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements: *03‘ O //Q/QELOP@&
( * [
a. Estimation of net redlisable value (NRV) for inventory '.n% \ x.l‘g‘)x (2 MUMBAI ;}
.‘IA" S/ ._‘; =)
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). A @dA ooé@’ \@&\_/&}4

NRV of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference to market conditions, prices and trends
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Group based on comparable transactions observed
/identified for similar properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices and trends existing at
the reporting date for similar completed property, less the estimated cost to complete construction and an
estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.
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Estimated cost to complete is reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and overruns basis the
progress of the project.

b. Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the
fime value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

c. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs for impairment
calculation, based on Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

d. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule Il, they are based on technical
advice. Assumptions also need to be made when the Group assesses whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

e. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuariol
assumptions include discount rate, expected return on plan assets, trends in salary escalation and attrition rate.
The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds corresponds to the probable maturity of the posi-
employment benefit obligations.

f. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on the quoted market prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigue. The
inputs to these models are taken from the observable market wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a
review of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Any changes in assumptions could affect the fair value
relating to financial instfruments.

g. Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For
contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent
liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which IS remote are not dise in the
financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the cqnfmgeﬂc»? has be ' :

amounts are received or receivable. (7 \9*\_

| va

g 1l |

h. Recognition of deferred tax assets -.g &/
T\ ,,,, D o}"

(4
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unesca’dc,rx “redits to the e)slw‘rfho’r
realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the probabilify with regard to the realisation
of the tax benetfit involves assumptions based on the history of the entity and budgeted data for the future.
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lll. Measurement of fair values

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date, as required by Ind AS. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s qbili’ry fo generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Management
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to
measure fair values, then the Management assesses the evidence obtained from third parties to support the
conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in
which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,

then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the

lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporhng period dunng

which the change has occurred. /§H'=‘-g “EL
IV. Property, plant and equipment & depreciation %] *
ICD)_ ( o) MUMB
a. Recognition and measurement \,__%'\_._ \5 \ /) N & /

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less occumulo’r\ed depl‘émahon and lmpcﬁnnen’r losses,
if any. The Cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comyprises of:

i. its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting frade discounts
and rebates.

ii. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by Management.

iii. the initial estimate of the costs of dismaniling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located,
the obligation for which the Group incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used
the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.
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iv. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of Property, Plant and Equipment, which
takes substantial period of fime to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the
period fill such assets are ready to be put to use.

v. Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management are recognised in
Statement of profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related fo an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book value only if it
increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All
other expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Expenses incurred for acquisition of capital assets excluding advances paid towards the acquisition of Property,
Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed under Capital Work in Progress.

Capital Work in Progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss of the Group in the year of disposal.

c. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to be put to use on straight line method, except for
a subsidiary, R Mall Developers Private Limited, which uses written down value method, as per the useful life of the
Property, Plant and Equipment including property held as Investment as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1l of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a prorata basis from the date of installation / acquisition 1ill the date the assets are
sold or disposed.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value.

Nature of the asset - Useful life
Computers - 3 years
Plant & Equipment 5 Years to 25 Years
Building 60 years
Solar - - 25 years B
- Windmill 22 years AZGHL & N
Office Equipment 5 years [ 9y “"\Q?\
Vehicle _ 8 years ol %

o %
Furniture and Fittings 10 years \2\ / U
— B \."3’, — QSELOPGP
N8g Acco>” ®

Q
The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically. ,g MUMBAl)-;: )
\ =/
o VZA _’/’ /
d. Derecognition 7 <
9 5 S/

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any Gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.
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V. Investment properties

Building, that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not in use by the
Group, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is measured initially at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed when incurred. When part of an Investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The carrying amount of investment property is reviewed periodically for impairment based
oninfernal and external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use.

Investment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method except for a
subsidiary, R Mall Developers Private Limited, which uses written down value method, over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, which are in line with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual
usage of the assefs.

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method except for a subsidiary, R Mall Developers Private Limited,
which uses written down value method, to allocate the cost of assets, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same period.

VI. Intangible assets
a. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises of its purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use.

b. Subsequent expenditure

_Subsequent expenditure_is_capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits_.associated with the——
expenditure will flow to the Group.

c. Amorlisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, except for a subsidiary, R
Mall Developers Private Limited, which uses written down value method,, from the date the asset is available to
the Group for its use. The amortisation period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a infinite
useful life are reviewed atleast at the end of each reporting period.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows: ¥ §\GHT& .
: LG N0 JELOAN
Nature of the asset ' Amortisation period [/ @\‘ & %
Computer software (ERP) | 5 years - license period || Jal & @\
Computer software (other than ERP) | 3years ) 2\ / S/ (E|\ MUMBAI | )
g\

=
d. Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.
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VI. Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non- Current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
‘when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset {or disposal group) and ifs sale is highly probable. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qudlify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

Non-Current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell except for those assets that are specifically exempt under relevant Ind AS.
Once the assets are classified as “Held for sale”, those are not subjected to depreciation till disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised for any inifial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset
(or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.

A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet.

Discontinued Operations

A disconfinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of single
coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view fo resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

VIii. Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is recognized as an asset and measured at cost,
representing the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired. Goodwiill
is not amortized and is tested annually for impairment at the CGU level using appropriate valuation techniques.
Impairment losses, if any, are recognized through the statement of profit and loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Gains or losses arising on disposal of subsidiaries inciude the carrying amount of goodwill attributable to
the disposed entity.

IX. Foreign currency fransactions / translations

a. Foreign exchange fransactions are recorded at the closing rate prevailing on the dates of the respective
fransactions or at the contracted rates as applicable.

b. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

c. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were tfranslated on initial recognitien-duting the period ot in_previous
financial statements are recognised in the statement of Profit and Lgs‘s |rk‘1he¢%1\lod inw r@iwv ise.

/ * \ /fQ /\ \
X. Financial instruments 9 2] < MUMBAI' ,

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enMy tz‘md a fig Tbjw\lgljﬁﬂy or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial hoblImuSObnrecrecognlsed tlgrﬁdh >Toup
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
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directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

a. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. All recognised financial assets are
subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of
the financial assets.

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Oninitial recognition, the Group can make an irevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to present
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity
instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain
or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition
to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments
which are not held for trading. Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

iv. Investment in associates & joint venture

Investment in associates and joint ventures are measured using the equity method of accounting after initially
being recognized at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements.

v. Impairment of investments

The Group reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there is
indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is

accounted in the statement of profit and loss.
\xGH

vi. Derecognition * _ c_) y/ Q,“ELOP @\\
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part ofm aroup of } cl t\ﬁl g‘ﬁs) is
S T 5—
primarily derecognised- (i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) whem’} \Z ,})
@dAcco\) \\ ,0.//

- the right fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation o pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either
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(a) the Group has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
fransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither fransferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the fransferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement,
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The tfransferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

vii. Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Group
recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing fransaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to
the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk
on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

viii. Step acquisitions (subsidiary is acquired in stages):

When the initial investment made by the Group in any other entity was not falling under the category of an
associate, joint venture or subsidiary of the entity, cost of such entity gets accounted for in accordance with Ind
AS 109 “Financial Instruments” at fair value.

When such an entity becomes a subsidiary, the Group accounts for the cost of the investment in the subsidiary as
the sum of the consideration paid for the initial interest, plus any consideration paid for the additional interest
(accumulated cost approach).

When the accumulated cost approach is applied, the Group recognises the difference between the fair value of
the inifial interest at the date of obtaining control of the subsidiary and its original consideration in profit or loss,
regardless of whether, before obtaining control, the initial investment had been measured at fair value through
profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI).

b. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
i. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments.issued-by-a Group are classified as eitherfinancialliabilities or as equity in accordance——
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

ii. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
ofifs liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at 1he proceéds received, net of direct issue

costs. O ZE N
* J l* 1

iii. Financial liabilities .91 )r)
@ Q,.r

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of\{mcmuul riubrhhes at amortised cost, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. All financial liabilities are subsequenfly medsured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is

calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are op Uh:, Ixal rt of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
< MUMBAI "
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iv. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial
assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for
managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Group's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If
the Group reclassifies financial assefts, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group
does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

d. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Xl. Inventories

Direct expenditure relating to Real Estate Development activity is inventorized. Other expenditure (including
borrowing costs) during construction period is inventorized to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing
costs) incurred during the construction period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working
condition for its infended use is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is
determined based on specific identification to the construction and real estate activity. Cost incurred/ items
purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received.

a. Inventories comprise of: (i) Finished Goods representing unsold premises in completed projects. (i) Construction——

Work in Progress representing properties under construction /development including land held for development
on which construction activities are yet to commence (i) Transferable development rights (TDRs)

b. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

c. Cost of Reaity construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in proportion to the
revenue recognised during the period and the balance cost is carried over under Inventory as part of either Realty
Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of Realty construction / development includes all costs directly
related to the Project (including finance cost attributable to the project) and other expenditure as identified by
the Management which are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the Project
(net off incidental recoveries / receipts) upto the date of receipt of Occupation Certificate of Project from the
relevant authorities.

Realty Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, transferable development rights
(TDR}, construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental to fhe projec‘rs undertaken by the Group.
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XIl. Revenue recognition
a. The Group has applied five step model as set outin Ind AS 115 fo recognise revenue in this Financial Statements:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be
met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract
with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the fransaction price: The fransaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for fransferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more
than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is
met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs; or

- The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

- The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on the condmons in: khe\con’rrcc’rs

with customers. /@GH' & .._. / ./._
* a" \ i

'Ok ‘,\\/7} 4

i) Income from Property Development (|

(i) perty P 3\ - hy/

The Group has determined that the existing terms of the contract with ce@[@mers does not meetihe criteria to
recognise revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale
of residential and commercial units as and when the control is passed on o the customers which is linked to the
receipt of occupancy certificate and on issuing the possession letter of the property. However, in those cases
where the receipt of occupancy certificate is significantly delayed after. an application is made towards the
respective project with the appropriate authorities, revenue is recognised when the entire sales consideration of
the respective units are received and handover for fit outs being given to customers.

The specific revenue recognition criteria are described below:

’éfn'r; x 9/

K

(i) Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights

Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development
Rights as and when the confrol is passed on to the customers.

(i) Income from investment in Partnership Firms & LLP, AOPs

Share of profit / loss in Partnership firms is recognized when the right to receive is established as per agreement /
agreed terms between all the partners / members.
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{iv) Interest income

Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate (EIR method).
(v} Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted over the lease terms.

(vi} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.

b. Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by fransferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Conftract liability is the obligation to fransfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. if a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

c. Cost to obtain a contract

The Group recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Group
expects to recover those costs. The Group incurs costs such as sales commission when it enters info a new contract,
which are directly related to winning the contract.

d. Joint development arrangement

The Group executes projects through Joint Development Arrangements (JDA), wherein the land owner provides
land and the Group undertakes to develop properties on such land (i.e. development right) and in lieu of land
owner providing land, the Group has agreed to. transfer certain percentage of constructed area or certain
percentage of the revenue proceeds or certain percentage of surplus to the land owner. Transfer of such
_constructed area or revenue or surplus in exchange of such development rights/_land is being estimated at fair-
value as per the terms of the agreement and accounted for on launch of the project as the cost of development
right (Inventory) with its corresponding liability. When the fair value of the land cannot be measured reliably, the
revenue and cost is measured at the fair value of the estimated construction service rendered to the landowner
adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. Subsequent to initial recognition, such liability
is remeasured on each reporting period depending on the type of the arrangement, to reflect the changes in the
estimate, if any.

In case of JDAs, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, the Group recognizes revenue only when it
can reasonably measure its progress in satisfying the performance obligation. Until such time, the Group
recognizes revenue to the extent of cost incurred, provided the Group expec’rs fo recover ’rhe costs incurred

towards satisfying the performance obligation. GH’ (g :
\~\ \
<o\ /\ \

x| .
UJ
ed Ac00° k 2

Currentincome tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from

or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable profit for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period.

Xlll. Income tax

v"%“q’f

a. Curirent income tax:



Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to consolidation financial statements

fo the fereh 1

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a fransaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asset in respect of carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilized.

c. Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognized in OCI, in such case, the current and deferred taxincome/ expense
are recognized in OCI. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same
are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the Group.

XlV. Employee benefits

a. Short ferm employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the

amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amountasa

result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
b. Post-employment benefits

(i) Defined Confribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is p/owded
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a r:cSh refund or a re}gi@lrdw e future
payments is available. / %\:\ \ \ / ™~

& (
(i) Defined Benefit Plans ' ] w] \\ IS/
Payment of Gratuity to employees is in the nature of a defined benefit Q‘Pg;\a Prov:sm@ Ibr GratuiiyAs ref’rmﬁf:i on
the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary using Fr G]@C"red Uit Credit Mé

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited
to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
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in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to
any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses and the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are recognised
immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl). Net interest expense/ (income) on the net defined liability /
(assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability / (asset). Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
When the benetfits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

a. Other long term employee benefits

The Group’'s liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary using Projected
Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss as
income or expense or recognized under Other Comprehensive Income to the extent such actuarial gains or losses
arise due to experience adjustments. Obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the market yields at the Balance Sheet date on
Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government Bonds are consistent with the currency and
estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

XV. lLeases
a. Where Group is the lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shori-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right fo use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying

asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes

the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a siraight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencementi date because the inferest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes fo future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payr, ef\’szd)r Gci:honge,fﬁ’&wﬂss\ssmen’r

of an option to purchase the underlying asset. *"9 \o\ /"Q,
{ \
(" *
iii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets %,; ,}5”.’5’
Q. T

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases #ﬁ’@it&h S Ieose 1erm of i? mon’rhs
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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da. Where Group is the lessor

Leases in which the Group does not fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

XVI. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs allocated to qualifying assets pertains to the period from commencement of activities relating to
construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing cost are suspended from inventorisation/capitalisation when development work on the project/assets
is inferrupted for extended period and there is no imminent certainty of recommencement of work.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

XVII. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent as reported in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. However, for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and short
term deposits as defined in Ind AS 7.

XVIII. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considered
in ascertaining the Group’s earnings per share is the net profit for the year after deducting preference dividends
and any attributable tax thereto for the year.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all years presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the
number-of equity shares-outstanding, without acorresponding change in resources.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is also adjusted for treasury shares.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding.during the year is oucﬂusjod for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares. _.-’\\~_\G g oN R \"\.

. -\'o \. f \

\

*
0 | * \ ¥
XIX. Treasury share ?.i éﬁ' O/

When any entity within the Group purchases the Company's eqwfyedfhe gormderohon paid mt:luﬁm/ony directly
attributable incremental cost is presented as a deduction from fotal equu’ry, until they are cancelled, sold or
reissued. When freasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an
increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is fransferred to/ from securities premium.

XX. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.
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The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for:
(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group or

(i) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in Financial Statements. If an inflow of economic benefits has become
probable, contingent assets are disclosed.

Confingent Assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
Financial Statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
the related income are recognised in the Financial Statements of the period in which the changes occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
XXI. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's
other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Accordingly, the Group has identified following as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108:
a) Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

c) Power generation

Real Estate segment (RE) comprises development of land, sale of land, sale of Transferable Development Rights
(TDRs) and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects. Lease rental comprises the rental of
properties as shopping malls and Office Premises. Power generation is through Solar and Wind Mill.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the
financial statements. Also, the Group's income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are not allocated to
operating segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in-ex- nner like
transactions with third parties. ,,"-"\\Eii_ssg\g\
QQ,__,-’ *-\/;()p \
XXIl. Business combinations '

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the businesses which are
not under common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-conirolling interests in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in
a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:
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a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Tax' and ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’
respectively.

b} Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the
acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are
accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

¢) Reacquired rights are measured af a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of
the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind
AS 1092 ‘Financial Instruments’, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
Ind AS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business  combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using the pooling of
interests method as follows:

* The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

* No adjustments are made fo reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only
made to harmonise accounting policies. :

* The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business
combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective
of the actual date of the combination. However, where the business combination had occurred after that date,
the prior period information is restated only from that date.

* The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with
‘the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general
reserve.,

* The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the fransferor become the reserves of the
fransferee.

* The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional cons:dera‘non

in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transterar is fransferred t | reserve
and is presented separately from other capital reserves. . ;}\\GH! ™\ \

e (OAN 'O\
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XXIil. Dividend Policy = /2] \Z, <)

')’ \ / \(g—’: \% \/ /4
The Board of Directors of the parents and its subsidiaries determine the cfm@‘\,gpb and nature ¢ wk_j,eﬂés fo be

distributed from profits, taking into consideration their respective profitability, future capital and operational
requirements, requirements under applicable law, and the overall interests of shareholders. Dividends are
declared and paid in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the policy formulated for
dividend distribution, which may be reviewed from time to time. The policy of the parent and its subsidiaries aims
to maintain a balance between sharing profits with shareholders and retaining eamings for future growth and
expansion.
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4 Right of use asset

T in Lakhs
S TN I A AT e PR S e del 0 Ees ine o iToticePremsestp oy dikan e STl T
I Cost:
Balance as at April 01, 2023 .
Additions

Addition on account of B s Combination (refer note 47}
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Additions —

Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2025
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2023
Depreciafion charge forthe year
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2024
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments

Carryln_gmunf:

As at March 31, 2025
As at March 31, 2024

Notes:
i} The Group has taken office premises on Lease period of 60 months with a non-cancellable period of 36 months.
ii} Refer note 56 on Leases

“n

Capital Work In Progress

2 in Lakhs

Lood o o - - -  $ d— ! ! { —
Balance as at April 01, 2023 . _ - 58.14 - — - - 58.14
Addifions B = 9673 _._..1/45984 ...1o4.1s 149.97 2477 187 1,837.33
Addiitions on account of Business Combination 27.67 | | 27.67

(refer note 47) | 1 - - ! | -
Capitalised during the year — = H =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 .73 1.545.65 104.18 149.97 24.77 1.87 1.923.14
Additions 83 1,423.81 | 98.25 95.08 20.00 0.31 1,660.28
Capitalised during the year ] | 1.821.11

Balance as at March 31, 2025 _ 1) I |10 157.2 356 3|

Ageing Schedule:

. As at March 31, 2025 2 in Lakhs

'Projects in progress
Total

. As at March 31, 2024 Z in Lakhs

’P_rqe_cis in progress i [ 1,865.00 | 5814 [ 1923.14
Total | 1,865.00 | 58.14 | = - | 1,923.14
Notes:

i} Refer Note 50 {C) for disclosure of capital commitment of construction of Property, Plant and Equipment.
i)y The CWIP relates to project which are in Progress. No such projects are suspended.
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6 Investment Property (Measured at cost)

T in Lakhs
Particulars Land Development Rights Bullding Total
I Cost: ]
Balance as at April 01, ,2023 §.393.3% - 45,347.94
Addiions - — 3%
Addition on account of Business Combination (refer note 47) - 20,482.57 1 51 04207 1.71,524.64
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments . - - 1 -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 N 9.393.39 20.482.57 _1.96.393.53 2.26,269.49
Additions . | 6,831.50 - 1,61,021.71 1,77,853.21
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments - - =
... Balance as at March 31, 2025 26.224.89 20,482.57 35741524
Il Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2023 - | B99.20
charge for the year - §.542.34
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments Bl | : =1 —
Balance as at March 31, 2024 . - 11.441.54 11.441.54
Depreciation charge for the vear - . __10,597.00 10.597.00
Disposcl / Discarded / Adiustments 2
Balance asatMarch 31,2025 - . 22,038.54 22.038.54
aticulars Land Development Rights Buliding Tolal
__Camying Amount: e SR
As at March 31, 2025 . 26,224.89-7, '20,482.57 3,35,376.70 1 . 38208416
As at March 31, 2024 9,393.39 | 20,482.57 1,84,951.99 2,14,827.95

Notes:

a) The Group investment properties consists of commercial properties at R Malt Mulund, Runwal Odeon Mall, R Mall Thane, R City Mall Ghatkopar and R Square Andheri. Further, a
subsidiary company(R Mail Developers Private Limited) had acquired Development Rights (TDR) for construction of Commercial property (R City Mall}. the subsidiary company is in the
process of entering into an agreement with the land owner granting the perpetual lease/Conveyance of the related land.

b) Fair Value of Investment Properties

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at the end of the year have been determined on the basis of valuation carried out by independent valuers registered as defined
under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculation has been conducted through a Sale comparison technique. The fair value measurement for

the investment property has been categorised as a Level 2 fair value measurement.

Total fair value of Investment Property is 5,47,258 Lakhs. {Previous year ¥ 3,24,184 Lakhs) as per valuation report.

The above mentioned fair value also includes fair value of Investment Property under Construction at Mumbai (R Square Andheri) for which Part Occupancy Certificate was not

received fill March 31, 2025

¢) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property

The Group has eamned a rental income of ¥ 26,890.27 Lakhs and has incurred expense of ¥ 27,256.57 Lakhs (including Depreciation of  10,597.00 Lakhs) towards Direct operating
expenses for Investment Property. (Previous year rental income of  20,027.39 Lakhs and has incurred expense of ¥ 24,531.71 Lakhs including Depreciation of ¥ 9,542.34 Lakhs)

d) Leasing arangements

The Group has given mall premises on lease which includes both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewabile for further period on mutually agreeable
terms and also include escalation clauses. The rental income in respect of leases is disclosed as 'License fees and rental income' in note 35. With respect to non-cancellable operating

leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:

g in Lakhs
Particulars L ‘Az ot As 012
Within one vear 24,151.13 8,596.01
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 64,956.06 6,306.48
Total 89,107.19 14.902.49

e) Contingent rent recognised as income during the year & 1,325.07 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 1,275.60 Lakhs).

f) The Group has no restriction on the realisabifity of its investiment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properiies or for repairs,

maintenance and enhancements.

g)  On adoption of IND AS, inventory given on lease rental is classified under head investment properties as per para 57 of Ind AS 40.

-~ - h) — Canying amount of Investment Property charged-as-security against borowings  3,35,376.70 Lakhs (Previous year¥ 1,84,951.99 Lakhs).

i) Investment Property Land having Gross Carrying Value of  9,241.44 Lakhs has been transferred to the Runwal Construction Private Limited (subsidiary company) pursuant to conversion
of Partnership Firm. The said Land is in the name of Runwal Constructions {Partnership Firm). The title deed of above land are pending mutation in the name of the subsidiary company
which is procedural in nature and the subsidiary company is in the process of getting this done.
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7 Investment Property under construction

= . . = Freeholdiond  ©  Building | Tolal

L] - - 10,852.33 10,852.33
Additions on account of Business Combination (refer note 47) e 28,801.89 . 1.84,526.94
Capitalised during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 ——— 28.801.89 1.66,577.38 1.95.379.27
Additions o - 18,967.75 ] 8596 /OB
Capitalised during the year . I . (16,831.50) {1,61,021.71) {1,77,853.21)
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments 1 19.602.22| S (9,602.22!
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2.368.17 24,523.42 26,891.59
Note:

a) Investment property include land and capital work in progress for construction of shopping mall and commercial offices. The project is located at Mumbai & Pune.

b)  Fair Value of Investment Properiies at Mumbai
The fair value of the investment properties under consiruction at the end of the year have been determined on the basis of valuation canmied out by independent valuers registered as
defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculation has been conducted through a Sale comparison technique {PY Residual value
method). The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 2 fair value measurement.

¢)  Fair Value of Investment Properties at Pune
The Fair Value measurement for investment property under construction has been categorised as a Level 2 Fair Value based on the ready reckoner raies for land and cost of
construction incurred for buliding.
During previous year, valuaiion has been conducted through Residual method & Cost comparison method of valuation has been adopted fo arive at the fair market value of the
property by independent valuer registered as defined under rule 2 of the Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

d) Refer note 6 for fair valuation of Investment properly at Mumbai (R Square Andheri) (PY 1,22,162.50 lakhs).
Total fair value of investment property under construction other than above is % 6,291.28 Lakhs (Previous year % 73,216.77 Lakhs).

e) Ageing Schedule:
a. Asat March 31, 2025  in Lakhs

Projects in rogress B ' ] 1,22,240.90 881357 2587401 . 38,450.79 1,95,379.27
Total | 1,22,240.90 | 8,813.57 | 25,874.01 38,450.79 | 1,95,379.27

) Refer Note 60 for information on invesiment property under construction offered as security against borrowings taken by the company.
g) There are no investment property under construction whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

8 Goodwill on Consolidation
% in Lakhs

Adjustment on account of Business Combination |refer note 47|
Reversal on account of cessation of Control of Subsidiary on Merger

Closing Balance as at end of the year
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¢ Other Intangible Assets

2 in Lakhs

Balance as at April 01, 2023 - 3235
Addiitions - 304.80
Acquisition through Business Combination {refer note 47) 14.21 o _— 108.38
Transfer / Disposals / Other Adjustments o o - (3.46]
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - . e 14.21 442.07
“Additions o - 16.62_
Acquisition through Business Combination {refer note 47) - -

Disizosals

Bal as af March 31, 2025 e

il Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2023 = 1l

30.93 30.93

Amortisation for the year - 0.0t 54.82 54.83
Transfer / Disposals / Other Adjusiments - 13.08) 13.08)
82.67 82,68

Balance as at March 31, 2024
Amortisation for the year

Transfer / Disposals / Other Adjusiments
_Balance as al March 31, 2025

Curyln mnh
As at March 31, 2025 : [ 280000 29419
As at March 31, 2024 14.20 345.19 359.39

10 Intangible Assets under Development
2 in Lakhs

Cost . |

Balance as at Aprit 01, 2023 | 21226
Additions o N o | 44.80

Capitalised during the year S B 1257.06

Balance as at March ;
Addlition

Capitalised during the year : = - N N ) ) -
Balance as at March 31, 2025

a)} Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2025
2 in Lakhs

Projects in progress

Total

As at March 31, 2024

% in Lakhs

Projects in progress = - ——

Total | - E

Notes:
i} Intangible assets under development mainly comprises of expenses incurred towards SAP, which is capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2024.
iy No projecis are suspended during the current and previous year.

iy No projects have exceeded their origindl timelines of budget.
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11A Equity Accounted Investees
% in Lakhs

Investments measured at equity method

i In Equity Instruments of Associate Companies (Face vaive of ¥ 100 each)

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
Nil {Previous year - Nil Shares){refer note 11B{i) below)
il. __In Equity Instruments of Joint Venture Companies (Face value of 10 each)
R Mall Developers Private Limited - Class A
Nil {Previous year - Nil Shares){refer note 47)
R Mall Developers Private Limited - Class B
Nil {Previous year - Nil Shares){refer note 47)
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Nil {Previous year - Nil Shares){refer note 47)__

11B Other Non Current Investments
2 in Lakhs

Unquoted Investments (fully paid)
a Investments measured at Amortised Cost
I In Preference Shares of Other Companies (Face value of ¥ 10 each)
Freeway Contractors Private Limited
..2,00,00,000 Shares {PY 2,00,00,000 Shares) - 0.01% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Share

b Investments (Valued at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss) (fully paid)
I In Eauity Shares of Other Companies (Face Value of ¥ 100 each)
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
NIL {PY 8,00,400 Shares) (refer note (i) below)
il.  In Mutual Funds (Refer note (i) below)
Aditya Birla Sun Life Saving Fund - Growth - Direci Plan
NIL (Previous year 14,121.602 units) —
Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund Savings Fund - Growth - Regular Plan
53,860.193 units [Previous year 54,776.916 units| -
Total of Investments valued at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 287.41
Total Non Current Investments 5.38 3.972.95

3,188.31

Notes:

i) Ceased fo be an associate w.e.f. March 22, 2024 on account of amalgamation between Runwal Commercial Assets Private Limited & Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited vide order
dated March 22, 2024.

i} Investmentin mutual funds are lien marked towards the borowings from financial institutions.

12 Other Non-current Financlal Assets
(Unsecured, considered good vunless stated otherwise)
% in Lakhs

Torelated parties
Security deriosits [refer note 49 |

To E;rﬂes other than related parties
Bank deposits

{with maturity for more than twelve months)(refer note (i) below) 2.585.63

Lease Edualization Reserve - S B B S - 44621
Security detosits {refer note [iil below!) S ! 450.06
Total

Notes:

il Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounting 16 ¥ 314.86 Lakhs (Previous year & 962.66 Lakhs)
i)  Security deposits are towards utility deposits and other deposits. During the previous year Security Deposit of Easy Homes Private Limited got converted into Inter Corporate Deposit.

13 Other Non-current Assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

_Tirelaled parties

Capital Advances 150.00
To parties other than related parties B
Capilal Advances - 5.195.06
Deferred Inferest Cost . 1.440.57

LPrepaid Expenses 1 3 | 1L98
Total ] 6.797.61
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14 Inventories
(At lower of cost or net realisable value}

g in Lakhs

Raw material — =
Consiruction work in progress (refer note (i) below)

,2024
7.083.47

= - 3.66,131.38
Finished goods 21,235.45

Stockin Trade 576.64
Stock of Consumables . 111.68
Transferable Development Rights “ b 3,170.69

Total T 211.57 3,98,309.31

Notes:
i} Refer note 60 for inventories charged as security against borowings.
i) Refer note 58 for break up of construction work in progress.

15 Current Investments

Quoted Investments (IIy paid)
Investments (Valved at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss)

In Equity Shares of Other Companies (Face Value of ¥ 1 each)
Swiggy Limited

Unguoted investments (fully paid)
Invesiments (Valued at Cost)

In Optionally Convertible Debenture ("OC_D“) of other companies

Horizon Projects Private Limited
NIL (Previous year - 7,000 ) 0.01 % Optionally Convertible Debenture Series 3 of % 1,00,000 each (refer note (i) & (i) below)

7,000.00
Total

7,000.00

Nofes:

i} The Tenor of the OCD Series 3 shall be until March 31, 2024, or such extended term as may be determined by the board with the prior written consent of OCD Series 3 holders
redeemable at a premium, which is to be decided at the time of redemption. At the expiry of the tenor any unredeemed face value OCD Series 3 may be converted to Class C
Shares. The OCD Series 3 shall be unsecured. The OCD Series 3 shall not carry any voting rights. During the year it has been redeemed at par.

i) For fransactions with relaied parties & balances payable o Related Parties refer note 49.

16 Trade Receivables % in Lakhs

Secured, considered good 2,614.18
Unsecured, considered good 1,328.42
Unsecured, Credit Impaired

Allowarnics for Cred! Losses
3,524.53

Note:
i} Also refer note 55 for disclosures related to revenue and for ageing of receivables.

17 Cash and Cash equivalents
% in Lakhs

Balances with banks =
__In cument accounts [refer note (i below| -
Bank deposits (with original maturity for three months or less| {refer noie il below|
Cash on hand
Total

8,860.15

Notes:

i) Includes % 1,600.16 Lakhs (PY 3,049.15 Lakhs) hetd in escrow aceount for a project under Real Estate {Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 ["RERA"). The money can be ulilised
for payments of the specified projects.

i) Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earns interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates.

18 Bank balances
(Other than cash and cash equivalents)

g in Lakhs

Bank deposits
(With original maturity for more than three months but less than twelve months)
Total

Note:
i) Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issueing bank guarantees amounting ¥ 2,991.57 Lakhs {Previous year T 231.61 Lakhs)
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19 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Jorelated parties S

Inter Corporate Deposit (refer note (i) below) S 7,11891
Others N 68.71
To parties other than related parlies i |

Inter Corporate Deposit 11,583.97

Security Deposit ; 289.54
Total o) ;: 19,061.13

Note:
i} Inter corporate deposits given to related parties are repayable on demand. (refer note 49)
% in Lakhs

Promoters
Directors

KMPS : _0,00%

Related Parties . o T1B7.62 Kb

Total 7,187.62 37.71%
20 Other Current Financial Assets

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

% in Lakhs

Jorelaled parties (refer note 49)
Receivable fowards cancellation of lease
Security Deposits
Other Advancas o
To parties other than related parties
Other Advances (refer note {i) below)
Unbilled Revenue
Dividend Receivable )
Security Deposits (refer note {ii) below) I 1,014.24
Loans and advances to employees | 13.72

Recoverable from society, _ __ -
Loan processing fee
Lease Equalization Reserve

23634

Interest accrued but not due on deposits 157.98
Tolal 7 1,891.76

Notes:
i} Other Advances to parties other than related parties are repayable on demand.
i} Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards other deposits which are repayable on demand.

21 Other Current Assets
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Zin Lakhs

Advance against Land/TDR/Others [refer note below| f 15,428.28

Advance to Suppliers & Contractors (refer note below! - o - - 19,303.05
Advance against Flats o - 1,351.80

Balances with Statutory authorities
Prapaid expenses

Other Receivables

Defered Inferest Cosf

157034
25

51,067.04

Nofte:
i) Advances against Land/TDR/Goods/Expenses are towards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be settied against fulure purchase of such assefs.

22 Non-current assets classified as held for sale
% in Lakhs

Windmill Land at Dhule .
Windmilt Ptant & Machinery at Dhule o S : 660.02
Jotal Gross S 88002
Less: Accumulated Depreciation on Plant & Machinery - (598.46)
Net Assets Held for sale
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23 Share Capital

2 in Lakhs
Asat As at

Rl i - March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Avuthorised Share Capital
Equity Share Capital (Fully Paid) (refer nofe (i) below) - [
34,69,50,000 (Previoys Year - 29,55,50,000 ) Equity sharesof1each . 3,469.50 295550
Increased on account of Business Combination(s,14,00,000 Equity shares of 2 1 each) | - T_ 514.00
Total Equity e 346950 3.,469.50
Preference Share Capital —— ! 3__"__ N -
1,60,000 [Previous Year - 1,60,000) Preference shares of € 10 each 14,00 16.00
JTofal Preference Share Copitel » 16.00 - 16.00
Total Authorised share capital 3,485.50 | 3,485.50
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up equity shares }
22,28,90,150 {Previous Year - 22,28,90,150) Equity shares of 1 each 2,228.90 .

s {refer note (i) below) 37,52,700 {Previous Year - 37,52,700 ) Equity sharesof R 1each _ ___ __ {37.531:
- — ] 2191.37

Notes: .
i) During the previous year Authorised Equity Share Capital of the parent is increased by 53,00,000 equity shares of 2 10 each out of which 51,40,000 equity shares of € 10 each has
been converled into 5,14,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 1 each and 1,60,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each has been converied into 1,60,000 preference shares of ¥ 10 each on March 07,
2024.
Subsequent to March 31, 2025, the Company's authorised equity share capital was increased from Z 3,469.50 lakhs 1o % 5,984.00 lakhs pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board
of Direciors on August 29, 2025. The necessary filings and approvals under the Companies Act, 2013 have been completed. This change does not affect the amounts disclosed as
at March 31, 2025, and has accordingly not been reflected above.
iii) Treasury shares
One of the subsidiary “Runwal Constructions” - a partnership firm(now Runwal Construction Private Limited w.e.f July 06, 2023}, holds 37,52,700 equity shares (previous year 37,52,700
equity shares) of the parent (Runwal Developers Private Limited), which are considered treasury shares. These shares do not carry voting rights.

iv) During the year, the parent has issued 1,54,67,298 equity shares at a premium of 2 535 per share to its subsidiary, R Mall Developers Private Limited, to acquire the 20,00,000 Class A
and 47,142 Class B equity shares of the R Mall Developers Private Limited. Subsequently, parent had bought back its shares at face value.

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year. o
Parficulars As af March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
No, of Shares No. of Shares
At the beginning of the year 21,91,37,450 21,91,37,450
Issued during the year 1,54,6 ; = -
Shares bought back during theyeor {1,64,6 . =
Outstanding at the end of the year . 21,91,37 .5 21,91,37,450
b. Aggregate number of equity shares Issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years Immediately

preceding the reporting date:

i) Sub-Division of Existing Equity Shares and Issuance of Bonus Shares
During the year ended 31st March, 2023, there was sub-division of existing 6,36,829 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up into 63,68,290 equity shares of Rs. 1/-
each fully paid up and issuance of fully paid up bonus shares post sub-division of shares in the ratio of 34:1 (i.e. 21,65,21,860 bonus shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up for
63,68,290 equily shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up), which have been approved by the shareholders on 28th September, 2022. The bonus shares were issued by utilising Capital
Redemption Reserve and Securities Premium. The bonus shares allotted shall rank pari passu in all respects and camry the same rights as the existing Equity Shares and shall be
entitted to participate in full, in any dividend and other corporate action, recommended and declared after the new Equity Shares have been allotted. There were no changes
in the number of shares during the year ended 31st March, 2022,

i)} During the year ended March 31, 2025, 1,54,67,298 equily shares were issued for consideration other than cash for acquisition of shares of R Mall Developers Private Limited.

c. Terms / rights altached to equity shares
i) The parent has only one class of equity shares having par value of 21 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

i)y Inthe event of liquidation of the parent the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Group, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion fo the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the parent

e Asat Miarch 31, 2025 As ot March 31, 2024
No.of Shares | % holding No.of Shares : % holding
Equity shares of 2 1 each fully paid | N P ey || il |
Sandeep Runwal - 16,08,12,120 | - 73.38% 16,08,12,120 | 73.38%
_Priyanka Runwal ] ,_9_5,_49,_324._‘ 26236665 1.97%
-— Saurabh Runwa| ——oe - - VS ——— | 1,44,88,179  661% 1,11,44,508 ) 5.09%
SanyaRunwal 14488177 681% . 1144507 509%
Total _20,93,37,800 95.63% 20,93,37,800 95.53%
e. Details of shares held by promoters
As af March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Parficulars No. of Shares | % holding HNo. of Shares % holding
Sandeep Runwal ] 16,08,12,120 73 3B 16,08,12,120 73.38%
Total 1 16.0812120 73.38% 16,08,12,120 73.38%

There is change in promaoters sharehoiding during the current and previous year.
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24 Other Equity

¥ in Lakhs
Asaf As at
A= = March 31, 2025 1
Capital Reserve {refer note (i) below) (33,;595._59)3 _(33,695.59)
Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note (i) below) - 154.73 0.06
Capital Reserve on Consolidation (refer note {iii) below) 96,799.01 96,799.01
Securities Premium (refer note {iv) below) - A SO e w 23,836.64  __ 23,836.64
Retained Earnings (refer note (v} below) 2582 1819230 2,18,416.85
Total | 3,19,214.09 3,05,356.97
2 in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
. SISy (33,695.59)
Closing Balance - - = (33.695.59) (33,695.59)
% in Lakhs
. As at As at
fepiceiTs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
b. Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note (i} below) X i3
_...Batance at the beginning of reporting year N — e e e e e e e 3 e 0.06
Creation on Redemption of Preference Shares oE. N - _ - .06
Creation on Buyback of Equity Shares 154.67 -
Closing Balance | 154.73 0.06
2 in Lakhs
———
Particulars Mol e <

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

c. Capital Reserve on Consolidation (refer note (iii) below)

Balance at the beginning of reporting year I e - 96,799.01
Movement during the year | - .
Closing Balance [ 96,799.01 96,799.01
2 in Lakhs
1 Asat As at

hatic Sigks . March 31, 2025 Maich 31, 2024

d. Securities Premivm (refer note (iv) below) 3 v =
Balance at the beginning of reportina year ! 5 _2§§_f§_&_6_4_ 23,836.64
Movement during the year i -
Closing Balance g  23,836.64 23,836.64

% in Lakhs
‘As at As ot

T March31,2025 _ March$1,2024

e. Retained Earnings (refer note (v) below) | BN =R TR0

__Balance at the beginning of reporting year Q:Mf i85 71,643.93
Add: Profit/({loss) for the year 3 _ | g A 7.08 1,20,362.95
Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) | WIS .__7_6!4 - 1323
Add: Movement in non-controlling interest presented within equily | B ! 12,40 _ 26,465.14
Add: Transfer / Utilisation of Reserves i —— = -
Less: Adjustement on account of Business Combination [refer note 47) 1D s [68.34)
Less: Creation of Capital Redemption Reserve | =5 _[j_g_i_ﬁﬂl [0.06]
Less: Reversal of excess value of Treasury Shares - B -
Closing Balance | 2,32,119.30 2,18,416.85

Nature and purpose of reserves :

i) Copital reserve comprises of ¥ 35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private Limited {"RRPL"), Runwal Projects Private Limited {"RPPL") and Runwal
Township Private Limited ("RTPL") have merged info Runwal Developers Private Limited resulting into a negative capital reserve of 10,175 lakhs, negative capital reserve of € 28,640
lakhs and o positive capital reserve of 3,097 lakhs.

ii) During the current year and previous year capital redemption reserve created out of retained earnings for the buyback of equity shares and redemption of preference shares.

i) Capital reserve arising on account of consolidation of subsidiaries.

iv) On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for using the pooling of interest method, the securities premium of the respective companies as appearing on the
appointed date of merger is merged into Group's reserves.

v) Retained’e ings represent the amount that can be distributed as dividend considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, During the year, no dividends are distributed
to the equity shareholders by the parent.
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25 Non-current Borrowings

R in Lakhs
d

Term Loans
FromBanks
From Financial Institutions
Vehicle loan from bank

Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 1 ——

2,46,991.70

Unsecured Non Convertible Debentures
nvertible Debentures
re-£1,00000
Date of aliotment - October 14, 2024
Date of redemption - April 14, 2027
Redemption Terms - Redeemable at par at the end of 30 months from dale of allotment
Coupon Rate
- 11.00% from October 14, 2024 to December 31, 2024
- 11.94% w.e.f. January 01, 2025 till October 13, 2025
——Ihereafter, coupon rate will be reset on expiry of every 12 months starfi

from October 14, 2025

Tolal 2,46,991.70

Note:
i}  Refer note 40 for securities, Rate of Interest, Terms of Borrowing and Repaymeni Schedule of Borrowings.

26 Lease Liabilities - Non Current

% in Lakhs

Lease Liabilities refer note 56
Total

27 Non-current Provisions

2 in Lakhs

Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 48)

Provision for Leave Encashment (refer note 48)
Total

28 Income Taxes
a. The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025

% in Lakhs

is charged to statement of profit and loss
Current Tax: —
Current Income Tax Charge

:Dpfened Tax:
In respect of current period origination

Income fax expense reported in the statement of proﬁi and loss

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive Income

.- Deferred fax credit on net gain on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax charge to other comprehensive income

Total Income Tax Expense

3,183.03




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

28 Income Taxes (Conid...)

b.

Major Components of Deferred Tax Liability / Asset (net)

% in Lakhs
kﬁ %b - . e 1 : X ] - - # [ | :- ] 4 =l M&_ .
s = T M| - [ “ i ~B L D & 1 N | ¥ o \
_Deferred Tax Liability
Property, plant & equipment e 2% . Q0
Right of use asset | {24.86)

ir Valuation of Investment property on account of business combination I 3] ,ﬁég' _{78,504.04)
ancial Assets measured at FVTPL | ' {214.58)
e [188:48)

Deferred Interest Cost
___ finshed Goods
... Unamortised Loan Processing Fees - e
Construction Work In Progress
Difference in canying amount of car parking equipment as per income tax and books of accounts
___Infongiblegsset
_Gross Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Tax Assets
Investment in shares at Amorlised Cost
entoropenty - i e a0 s o s e s .
Ly ses of capifal ransaction
Provisions for doubtful debts
__ Provisions for retirement benefits
Disallowance under section 438
Discounting on securily deposits
Expenses incurred on business combination
Advance from cusiomer
Lease Libility

__._Unabsorbed Depreciation
Expenses disallowed claimabie in future years.
Deferred Tax on Infereston ICD
Unpaid MSME creditors during the year

Carry forward losses of Business

Net Deferred Tax Liability

_De?er_red tax assefs (net) - )
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Movement in Deferred Tax Liability / Asset (net) for the year ended March 31, 2025;

3 in Lakhs

Tax effect of items constitufingDeferred Tax Liabilities: : | |

- Lropetty. plant & equipment 1350.00) - (16.22)| -
Right of use asset — ) [24.86) . 2488 | -
Fair Valuation of Investment property on account of (78.504.04)
business combination . - 2,184.65 =
Intangible asset . 13.54] -1 2011 -
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL | - 1214.53| -1 o 218.22
Lease equalisation reserve assets 1188.48] | -1 1690.70] |
Deferred Interest Cost - — 382,57 | L | ~176.54 |
Consiruction Work In Progress 1 11,580.13) ) - | 110.07]
Finished Goods — : = 1185.67) - [170.04) B i
Revclt'Jcﬁ?n of inventory on account of business (61.91) ] 6191
combination —. — 4 | ]
Unamorlised Loan Processing Fees | 4853 -1 ~ [254.75)

(81,644.26) - 142239

Tax effect of items constitutingDeferred Tax Assel:
Investment propert

17969 - 7Y

:'___J_rl\igsfme_nf in shares at Amortised Cost 223.08 - 5.14)
Provisions for doubtful debts 164.72 = 140.06
___._Provisions for retirement benefits . - 75.16 - | 32,63
Disallowance under section 438 25.43 120.40)
Discounting on securily deposits 13.75 = 1,106.66
Expenses incurred on business combination 0.86 [0.86}]
-....Advance from customer o A 1944 | - (1924}
Lease Libility _ _ 2502 | - {25.03)
Unabsorbed Depreciation 10.60 | - 2419 |
____ Expenses disallowed claimable in future years 0.02 | 0.02) |
_ DeferedTaxoninteresionICD e L2086 Zob L L2086
Unpaid MSME creditors during the year 0,42 - _ {0.42)
Cary forward losses of Business -
Difference in carrying amount of car parking equipment as 0.07) ~

_._ berincome tax and books of accounts

|
Il
B — i
- I - - , 012
1,858.98 - 1,637.76
(79.785.28) - 3,060.15




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

28 Income Taxes (Contd...)

¢. Movement in Deferred Tax Liability / Asset (net) for the year ended March 31, 2024:
% in Lakhs

As at
March 31, 2024

As af
March 31, 2023

On Account of

Business Combinafion Fecegniedcilinghr

Particulars Recognised In OCI

Tax effect of ltems constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Property, plant & eqymen_i e _1,449.54) 1.119.99 =1 (350.00)
Right of use asset 126.70) 1.84 - {24.86}
Fair Valuation of investment property on account of
business combination (13.021.43) (71,244.26) | (78,504.04)
Intangible asset - 0.88_ - - (3.54)
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL (164.71] - - [ {214.53)
Lease equdlisation reserve assets (5 1| 7697y {188, 48)‘
Deferred interest Cost —___‘ - (382.57)_
Construction Work In Progress (1,083.54) - - {1,580.13)
Revaluation of inventory on account of business
combination (110.20) - - (61.91)
___Finished Goods (311.25) - - (185.47)
T Unamortised Loan Processing Fees |31.59) - (148.53)
Difference in carrying amount of car porklng equipment as
per income tax and books of accounts e T {0.11} 0.04 - {0.67)
e _{16,256.50), {71,341.79 5 953.964 - (81,644.33):
Tax effect of items constituling Deferred Tax Asset: . —
Investment in shares at Amortised Cost. - 223.08 - 223.08
___Investment croperty - 22,53 - 179.69
Carry forward losses of capital transaction - {35.23) - =
.. Provisions for doubtful debts _ (64.87) - 164.72
Provisions for refirerment benefits 11,95 |4.79) - 75.16
Disallowance under secfion 438 1.40 - 25.43
Discounting on security deposits _ 1492 - l3 75
Expenses incurred on business combination - e f08¢) - O 86
Advance from customer . - (24.70) - I_SZA}_’A
Lease Libility - - 25.02 -l B0
Unabsorbed Depreciation - - 10.60 - . - 1060
Expenses disallowed claimable in future years . - B 0.02
Deferred Tax on Interest on ICD s W —a - | 1‘1”0 86
Unpaid MSME creditors during the year . - - O 42
Carry forward losses of Business < | - 192.41 (192.41)1
437.0% 1434.09 {7849 {4 29) | 1 859' 05
Net Deferred Tax Liabllity (15,819.41) (69.907.70) | 5,946.12 (4.29) (79.78S. 2__]_3

Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit multiplied by applicable tax rate :

This note presents the reconciliation of Income Tax charged as per the applicable tax rate specified in the Income Tax Act, 19461 & the actual provision made in the Financial Statements
as at March 31, 2025 with breakup of differences in Profit as per the Financial Statements and as per Income Tax Act, 1961.

2 in Lakhs

| ’ As at

i March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss R ! 17,471.06 1,17,175.47
Tax Rate for Corporcie Enfity as er Income Tax Act, 1961 | 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable to individual entifies _ | {4,397.12) 1. (29,490.72)
Jax Effect of: .
_Permanent Difference $87 51 (4,988.64)
Tax on exempted income o - 40.41
Income taxed at different rate 1,205.28
Unused capital losses = 191.14]
Deferred tax not considered in previous year 3 _2401.59
Tax expense included in Share of profit of Associate/ JV e . A 166.61
Consolidation Adjustment | =] 4,982.65
Excertional ltems | 29,177.63
Expenses / income| offered in tax books inet] & 58} 220.64)
Income Tax recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss at effechve rate (3,73 9_2‘} 3.183.03

e.” Tax Rate for Corporate Entity :

The Group has decided fo opt for the reduced corporate tax rates. Accordingly, the Group has recognised provision for income tax as per the provisions of the relevant section.

29 Current Borrowings

R in Lakhs
As al As at
Particulars Merch 31, 2025 March 31,2024
1 __ Secured i

From parties other than related parties -

__Bank Overdraft {refernote 61) e 4,939.05 &17.50
Ci
T ) i 3.764,00
From Financial ir PeFess| 1,951, 73
Vahicle Logr 35.51 37.76
12.431.14 14,692.68
M Unsecured . . == = o
From related parties - i16.7E
... From parties ofher than rela . on_ = peas gwme aem s oae
Book Overdraft 1,414.28
FPreference Shares (sefer nofe below i) - 1535
1,429.63

13,860.77




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

30 Lease Liabilities - Current

e -, « e
R T LTy ;E..
Lease Liabilities (refer note 56)
Total

31 Trade Payables

Ll L -
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

- Jolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Retention money

408.10
13,847 56

2 = Total ouis1onding_<;qu§ of micro and small enterprises e 1 25398
-___Total ouistanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises | 5,673.78
Total
Notes:

i) Retention money is collected and retained based on various terms and conditions agreed upon with the contractors. In various instances, retention money is payable when the
milestone of the entire set of services is completed and that foo with a covenant that it will be paid after a period which ranges between 3 to 5 years, if no deficiency is found during
this specified period towards the services which were rendered by them. Hence, practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of retention money.

i) For Ageing of Trade payables refer note 59 and for transactions with related parties & balances payable to Related Parties refer note 49.
i} For details of dues fo Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. (refer note 55)

32 Other Current Financial Liabilities

¥ in Lakhs

cla_l_‘y and bonus payable ' _6.57

Capex Creditor = . N 4 3,237.21
Security deposits 1297571
Sundry Deposits ——— N

Expenses payable
Deferred Income

Interest accrued but not due N
Amount payable fowards cancelled flats
Dividend Payable

Total

18,163.82

33 Other Current Liabilities
2in Lakhs

Advance from customers (refer note below)
Advarnce Income

Deferred Liability against purchase of development rights
Statutory dues payable

Sociely Maintenance payable
Other payable

Note:
i} Refer note 52 revenue from confracts with cusiomers.

34 Cunrent Provisions

‘&Iovee Beng[!!_s,_. =

Provision for Gratuity {refer note 48) -
Provision for Leave Encashment [refer note 48)

Provision for Expenses
Total

Sxa




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

35 Revenue from Operations
% in Lakhs

Sale of Flats

Sale of IDR 15636
Sdle of Services - Income from lease rental 2441529
Sale of electricity power I 60.05

Defered revenue from joint development amangement

1,382.23
49.550.36
4.393.41
53,943.77

Other operating revenue (refer note below)
Total

Notes:
i) Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges, interest on delayed paymeni from customers, cheque bounce charges, club usage charges, HVAC
and additional electricity recoveries, car parking income etc.

i} Refer note 52 for revenue from contract with customers.

36 Other income

Business Support Service
Interest incame
On ved deposit 46421
onice | :
Gnincome laxrefund
Ca OCD
Others
Dividend Income
Fair Valuation of Investments
Gain on derecognistion of lease
Profit on Sale of investments
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net)
_Profit on Sale/redemiation of Share/Mutual Fund
Miscellaneous income
Reversal of Provision
Sundry balances wr
Total

4,880.86

37 Cost of construction and development expenses
% in Lakhs

Cost of consiruction and development exzenses
Total

78,039.03
78,039.03

38 Changes in inventories of finished goods, construction work in progress and stock-in-trade
g in Lakhs

Inventories at the beginning of the year
_Construction WIP

Finished doods
Stock in Trade
Transferable Development Rights

22792080

Addifion on accaunt of Business Combination (r_eferTotg 4_7)

1,01,439.96

Inventories at the end of the year _
Consiruction WIP
nished goods

T 3e613138)
(21,235.45)

Transferable Development Rights ] 3,170.69]

{Increase}/decrease in inventories of finished goods. construction work in progress and stock in frade

39 Employee Benefits Expense

% in Lakhs

Wages & Bonus
utions 1o Provident & Other Fundis (refer note 48)
_Gratuity expenses (refer note 48) N
Expenses relaled to compensaied absences (refer note 48)
Staff welfare expenses

_m__éfgerred i construction work in pr9g_ré‘s“’s:é Investmeni nprg’peﬁ'y under cg_qgtfgzj@_
Total




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

40 Finance Costs
Zin Lakhs

._.Onterm logn
Gn bank overdraft
CniCD
On NCD
On lease fobiifies
On Oithers
Olvidend on radeemable Freference Shares
Finance charges

‘fra—n‘sfe:@g; 1o construction work in progress & Investment property under construction.
Total

41 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment{refer note 3)
Depreciafion on investment property {refer note 4}
Amortisation of Right to use (refer note 4)

Amortisation of Intangible assets (refer note 9)

Tronsferre_d fo construction work in.progress & Investment propem—/- L‘y@‘ei_cons?ruclion
Total

42 Other Expenses
T in Lakhs

Costofproject 43007
Electricity charges e e ——— — I 1,342.37
Repairs and maintenance
Building - 183.77
Plant & Machinery 337.94
__Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Loss on Sale of Property o
impgairment Loss of properly, plant and eqguipment
Fair Valuation Loss on Investments

Advertising and sales promotion
Rent

Corporate Social Responsibility Exizenses
_Donation

Fees & forms

Brokeraze commission
Allowances for expected credit losses
Sundy balances w/off

Conveyance Expenses I
Expenses incured on completed projects
Cost Of Goods Sold
[Fagilly Management . B
Security Expenses

Hiring and Recuilmen! expenses

_Transmission Rent Charges —
Miscellaneous expenses

Other outsourcing expenses

Total -

i




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes o Consolidated Financial Stalements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

43 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profits for the year attributabte to equity shareholders of the parent by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares as at the respective dates. The following data has been used for calculating basic and diluted EPS.

Tin Lakhs

eieulGrs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Basic and Diluted EPS_ . | |
Profit/{loss) after tax for the year R o 2 in Lokhs 13,737.08 12036295
Total number of equity shareholders outstanding at the beginning of the year Nos. 21,91,37.450 - 21,91,37,450
Total number of equity shareholders outsiongjgg Pﬂbﬁfﬂg of the year Mos 21,91,37,450 21.91,37,450
Subsequent event: Change in number of shares due to approval of issuance of bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1
i.e. for every 1 equity share held, 1 new equity shares to be issued hes: 21,91,87.450 21.91,37,450
Total \I/I\Ielgwed cweroge”number of equity shares considered as outstanding at the end of the year {as per Ind Nos. 43.82.74.500 43,82,74.900
AS 33 "Earnings Per Share") | | 3
Nominal Value of eqrui‘zykshare . . T 1,00 1.00
Basic and Diluted EPS (in ) ke | SHii! 27 b

(i} There have been no other fransactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial stalements.

(i) The Board of Directors and Members of the Company at their meetings held on September 05, 2025 approved the issue of 21,91,37,450 bonus equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 i.e. for
every one equity share held one new equily shares to be issued.

(i} The Company has received approval of ifs members on the above-mentioned matters and is in the process of carying out ali the procedural requirements with the Registrar of
Companies.

(iv)
Considering these subsequeni events, basic / diluted EPS has now been restated in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per Share” which is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Basic and Diluted EPS before restatement (in ¥ ) .27 54.93

Bassic and Diluted EPS [in 2 | 3.13 27.46




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025
44A Details of Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Venture

The parent, subsidiaries, associates & joint ventures are incorporated and have place of business in india

% in Lakhs
As at As at
N f th titli i
ame of the entitlies Principal Business Activity March 31, 2025 h 31, 2024
S Balaor Mars
Dhruva Wollen Mills Private Limited (refer note (i below] NA
Runwal (mio_rlaﬁ[uctions (refe_r _ngj_g _(ii) below) NA
Development of Real Estate
Runwal Consfruction Private Limited {w.e.f. July 06, 2023} Projects and Leasing of Retail 99.99% 99.99%
Spaces
R Siddhatva Developers Private Limited (fromerly known as Siddhatva Developers Private Limited) Developrent of Real Estate 100.00%
{w.e.f. November 30, 2023 till Jonuary 30, 2025) (refer note {ix) below) Projects 7 ee
Avalor Developers Private Limited (refer note {iii) below) NA -
R Mall Developers Private Limited [refer note (iii)_loglo_w) . . Leasing of Retail Spaces 99.73% 99 51%
Aethon Developers Private Limited {w.e.f. November 16, 2023) De"e'opm’frz;e";fe"' ESiais 100.00% 100.00%
“Galleria Retail Private Uimited (w.e.f. Ocicber 25, 2023) NA ] 100.00% 100.00%
R Retail Ventures Private Limited (refer note (iv) below) Deve'°pm;g}e‘°cf1§e°' Estate 100.00%: 100.00%
Runwal Holding Estates Private Limited Development of Real Estate 100.00%
- = W le= Projects___
Runwal Hotels Private Limited Development of Real Estate 100.00%
Projects

Viop down Subsidiart

Histyle Retail Private Limited (refer note {viii) below) Projects and Leasing of 100.00% 100.00%
e GOMmercial Spaces

Develépmeni of Real Estate

R Siddhatva Developers Private Limited {w.e.f.January 31, 2025)(refer note (ix} below} Projects 99.99%
S | ES——
Runwal Retail Private Limited DeyslopmeniorREalEstate 100.00%
Projects === -
Joint Venture - [ o« N
R Mall Developers Private Limited {refer note (i} below) Leasing of Retail Si:aces - | -
R Retail Ventures Private Limited (refer note (iv) below) Developmen? of Real Estate -
Projects
Subsidiary of Joint Venture o ]
Aethon Developers Private Limited (refer note (vi) below) : Develomeer ZT:;SREGI Estate = -
( -
Gallleria Retail Private Limited {refer note _(_vj) below} NA k= SLa -
Development of Real Estate |
Histyle Retail Private Limited Projects and Leasing of = -

Commercial Spaces |

Associates
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited (refer note (v) below) NA ! - =

Joint Venture of an Associates (effective holding)

S.R. Constructions ) RS | - -

Notes:

i) Dhruva Wollen Mills Private Limited merged with company vide NCLT order dated March 13, 2024, appointed date is April 01, 2023.

i} Runwai Constructions was converted into Runwal Construction Private Limited w.e.f July 06,2023.

i) Avalor Developers Private Limited merged with R Mall Developers Private Limited vide NCLT order dated December 09, 2024, appointed date is April 25, 2023. R Mall Developers
Private Limited ceased to be Joint Venture company. (refer note 47 Business Combination)

iv) R Retail Ventures Private Limited ceased to be Joint Venture company w.e.f October 30, 2023.
R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 50% shares held by Gaileria Retail Private Limited. (refer note 47 Business Combination)

v)] Ceased to be associate during the previous year on account of amalgamation between Runwal Commercial Assets Private Limited & Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited order
dated March 22, 2024.

vi) Aethon Developers Private Limited till November 15, 2023 was 100 % subsidiary of R Retail Ventures Private Limited. From November 16, 2023 to December 12, 2023 was 100 %
subsidiary of Runwal Developers Private Limited. w.e.f. December 13, 2023 was 100% subsidiary of Dhruva Wollen Mills Private Limited. Dhruva Wollen Mills Private Limited merged
with company w.e.f. March 13, 2024, appointed date is Aprit 01, 2023.

vii) Galleria Retail Private Limited till October 24, 2023 - 100% sulbsidiary of R Retail Ventures Private Limited. W.e.f from October 25, 2023 - 100% subsidiary of Runwal Developers Private

Limited.

viii) Histyle Retail Private Limited is 100% subsidiary of R Retail Ventures Private Limited and become step down subsidiary w.e.f. October 30, 2023.
ix}) R Siddhatva Developers Private Limited was 100% subsidiary tilt 31st January 2025 and subsequently became 100% subsidiary of Runwal Construction Private Limited.
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Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31 2025

46 Summarised financial information for Assoclate and Joint Venture

The table provides summarised financial information for associate and joint venture. The information disclosed reflects the amount presented in financial statements of the relevant
associate and joint ventures and not the Group share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjusimenis made by the entity when using the equity method, including
fair value adjustments need by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made at fime of acquisition and modification for differences in accounting
policies.

() R Mall Developers Private Limited ("RMDPL") - The Group has a 49.75% till April 25, 2023 interest in R Mall Developers Private Limited ["RMDPLY, a joint venture involved in mall
management of the R City Mall, Ghatkopar. Subsequent, the joint venture has been converted into subsidiary {refer note 44 on Group Information). The Group's interest in RMDPL is
accounted for using the equity method till April 25, 2023 in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture based on ifs Ind AS financial
statements are set out as below.

(i) R Retall Ventures Private Limited {"RRVPL") (Consolidated) - The Group has a 50% till October 31, 2023 interest in R Retail Ventures Private Limited {"RRVPL"), a joint venture involved in
construction of Residential and Commercial properiies. Subsequent, the joint venture has been converted into subsidiary [refer note 44 on Group Information). The Group's interest in
RRVPL is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture based on its Ind AS financial
statements are set out below.

(i) Wheelabrator Alloy Castings limited ("WACL") - The Group has a 34.26% till March 22, 2024 interest in Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited ("WACL"}, an associate involved in Real
Estate business. Subsequent, the associate has been ceased (refer note 44 on Group Information). The Group's interest in WACL is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the associate, based on its Ind AS financial statements are set out below.

(iv) SR Constructions ("SRC") - The Group has a 0.86% till March 22, 2024 interest in SR Consructions a joint venture of an associate (WACL) involved in Real Estate business. The Group's
interest in SR constructions is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture based on its ind AS
financial statements-management aceounts are set out below.

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Summarised Balance sheet T in Lakhs
Particulars Total
A Non - Current Assels __86,536.82 21,203.71 1.53.232.64
B Current Assets
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,842.84 689.99 1,129.42 10205___ 23,764.30
_ii} Others 5,610.33 92,365.08 92,709.48 e 1,240.42 1.91,925.31
Total CumentAssefs 27,453.17 93,055.07 93,838.90 1.342.47 2.15,689.61
Total Assets (A+B) 72,945.28 1,79.591.89 1,15,042.61 1,342.47 3.68,922.25
C  Non - Current Ligbilities
{i} Financial Liabilities 29,286.46 55,635.85 - 5,702.37 90,624.68
{ii) Non Financial Liabilities 233.69 55.82 1,525.21 - 1.814.72
Total Non - Current Liabllities 29,520.15 55,691.47 1,525.21 5,702.37 92.439.40
D Curent Liabilities -
(i) Financial Liabilifies ¥.402.67 226101 16.488.90 - 38.152.58
i} Non Financial Liabilities 1,276.38 69,500.75 72,579.21 - 1,43,356.34
Total Current Liabilities 10,679.05 81,761.76 89,068.11 - 1,81.508.92
Total Liabilities (C+D) 40,199.20 1,37,453.43 90,593.32 5,702.37 2,73.948.32
‘Net Assets S 32,7446.08 42,138.46 24,449.29 {4,359.90] 94,973.93
Group Inferest in Net Assels 16,291.18 5,118.39 5,460.38 - 26,869.95
Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss T in Lakhs
. RMDPL _RRVPL ___ WACL . SRC
For the petiod ended  for the period ended  For the perifod ended|  For fhe period ended
Particulars Aprll 01 2023 }o Apr!l 01, 2023 to April 01, 2023 to March  Aprii 01. 2023 fo March Total
2 3, 30, 2023 - 22 22,2024
Revenue from Operations ] 647 34 = 5,638.25 = 7.285.59
Other Income . 63.73 217.88 1,924.80 16.26 2,222.67
Total Income 1,711.07 217.88 7,563.05 16.26 9,508.26
Cost of Constructions - - 8,828.38 - .. 882838
Chclnges in inventories of Finished coods - (16,743.79| = 116,743.79|
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 99.48 12,22 81,17 - - 192.87
Finance Cost —- - - 16032 086 —1,92207 — C T 2,08295
Employee Benefit Excenses 7562 294.44 1,377.48 _ 15.67__ 1,76321
Other Expenses 47935 81.32 10,969.11 1.41 11,531.19
Total Expenses _ 814.77 388.54 6,434.42 17.08 7,654.81
Profit before tax 896.30 (170.66) 1.128.63 (0.82) 1,853.45
Tax Expenses 158.80 14.40 477.66 - _ 650.86
Profit for the year - 737.50 (185.08) 650.97 (0.82) 1,202.59
“cher Comprehensive Income/(loss) I - R = 15.88) = B 15.881
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 737.50 (185.06) 645.09 (0.82) 1,208.47
Group's share of profit for the year 366.91 (92.53) 221.01 - 495.39
'.-’/Q ._\,p \
<;: | MUMBAIE \
\\¢ \ ,"




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025
47 Business combination (Acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2024)

During the year ended March 31,2024 the Group had acquired controlling stake in R Mall Developers Private Limited, Galleria Retail Private Limited & R Retail Ventures Private Limited
and as-a part of the acquisition accounting, the Group measures all assets and liabilifies as at the acquisifion date at its fair values. The Group engaged an independent valuation
specialist to assess fair values of tangible and intangible assets. Fair value was determined using Discounied Cash Flow Method.

. Acquisition of R Mall Developers Private Limited
During the previous year Share purchase agreement (SPA] dated April 01, 2023 was entered between R Mall Developers Private Limited (*Joint Venture”), Reco Ghatkopar Private
Limited (*Joint Venture Partner”) and Avalor Developers Private Limited {*Subsidiary™}. As per SPA 20,00,000 Class A Equity Shares and 47,142 Class B Equity Shares have been Purchased
by Subsidiary from Joint Venture Partner. The fransfer of shares has taken place on April 25, 2023. Thus R Mall Developers Private Limited become subsidiary w.e.f April 25, 2023,

Meraer of Avalor Develooers Private timited [ADPL| with R Mall Develoners Privated Limiled [EMDPL:

National Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai bench vide their order dated December 09, 2024 sanctioned the scheme of merger between R Malll Developers Private Limited and Avalor
Developers Private Limited, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the amalgamation of the transferor with fransferee. The scheme became effective upon filing of
cerfified copies of the Orders of the National Company Law Tribunal to Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on December 14, 2024.

The Scheme has appointed date i.e April 25, 2023, which, Inter alia, provides for amalgamation of Transferor Company and Transferee Company upon the scheme becoming effective,

the business of the transferor stand transferred to and vested in the fransferee company from appointed date as a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements as at April 25, 2023

(appointed date} has been prepared incorporating the effect of Scheme of merger for amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company.
Further after giving effect of above NCLT order, Subsidiary company (RMDPL) has held its own shares at cost of 2 82,762.01 Lakhs (% 204.71 Lakhs— equity share capital and 2 82,557.30
takhs — Capital reserve] in ifs balance sheet towards the merger scheme on April 25, 2023 and as at March 31, 2024.

Il. Acquisition of R Retail Ventures Private Limited
During the previous year Share purchase agreement (SPA) dated September 08, 2023 entered between Runwal Developers Private Limited {"Company"}, White Harbor Investment
Limited ("Joint Venture Partner”) and R Retail Ventures Private Limited {*Joint Venture”) and Deed of Adherence (DOA) dated October 26, 2023 entered between Runwal Developers
Private Limited (“Company”], White Harbor Investment Limited (“Joint Venture Pariner”), R Retail Ventures Private Limited ("Joint Venture”) and Galleria Retail Private Limited
(“Subsidiary”). As per DOA 20,31,10,000 Equity Shares have been Purchased by Subsidiary from Joint Venture Partner. The fransfer of shares has taken place on October 30, 2023.
Thus R Retail Ventures Private Limited become subsidiary w.e.f October 30, 2023.

Acquisition of Galleria Retall Private Limited

During the previous year Share purchase agreement. {SPA) dated October 23, 2023 was entered between Galleria Retail Private Limited , R Retail Ventures Private Limited("Joint
Venture”) and Runwal Developers Private Limited (*Company”). As per SPA 10,000 Equity Shares have been Purchased by Company from Joint Venture. The transfer of shares has iaken
place on October 25, 2023. Thus Gallleria Retail Private Limited become subsidiary w.e.f October 25, 2023.

Assets and Liabilities Acquired :

¥ in Lakhs

[R Refoll Ventures Private  |R Mall Deveiopers Private  [Galleria Reiai Private
Pariculars I;lelfed - I';J.Imlied £ _le"od

lAs af Qclober 30, 2023 7As af Anrll 25. 2023 |-As at Oclober 25, 2023
Non-Cuirent Asset | |
Properly, plant and equipment 51.20 | 1,185.54 | -
Right-of-use asset - 14638 | | -
Capital work-in-progress - /.44 2
Other Intangible Asset _; 93.58 -
Investment Pronierties = =
Investment troperty under construction 1,84,526.95 ==} -
MNon cumrent tox assets - 493.01 498.68 -
Fir al assets - Others _ 74.40 202.87 | 5
Othernon-current assets — e 5.510.49 296.81 =
Current Assets ] |
Inventories | _1,02,590.95 | -
Trade receivables = 4,322.04 -
_Cosh and cash equivalents 689.99 | 27,247.92 0.43_
Bank balances 10.00 | - =
Loans 28,006.00 | - 0
Other financial assets 1,433.55 | 479.85
Othercurentassets R o 942537 | 1,086.24 |
T,thd Assef_g {A) 3 3-,059 _] 79.62 D43
Non-Current Liabllities
Financial liabilities | |
Borrowinas _34,613.08 27,213.49 | -
Lease liabilities — = - - - - --— 2277

Other financial liabilities — I _ - 137297 -
Provisions B2 | o 28.62 | -
Deferred tax liability (net) 37,6 6] 1.24 32,296.47 -
Other non-current liabilities 186.99

Current Liabilities | — —

Borrowings 3.502.20 88,131.00 | 6,00

Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Oiher financial liabilities

___128.64 —

518099
24,449.19

‘Other current Ilpbllmes
Current fax liabilities (net)

J69.493.69

Prov 'ons . __7.06 ey
Total Udblifies (8) 1,75.064.68 7.45.
Hdentifiabie Net Rssets at Falr Yalve (C = A-B) 1,57,994.63 (7.02)
Allocated to Non Controiling Interest (D) - N
Eurehase Eapiideration Ly d
Purchase Consideration Paid e 57,508.63 = J1.00
Fair Value of Existing Ownership Interest of 50.00% in RRVPL as on date of acquislion 57,508.63 | w =

Fair Value of Existing Ownership Interesi of 49.75% in RMDPL as on date of acquistion PR 82,102.53 -
‘furchnse Consideration (£} 1.15,017.26 82,102.53 1.00
KGoodwill} / Gaplial Reserve {f = C-D-F) 1 - . 42977.37 . (3s831681) (8.02)
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48 Employee benefits
(@) The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. Under these plans, the group is required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroli costs. Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year are as under :

2 in Lakhs
s T T S TR —— o
Ul o0t 2 AL T his Lo VLG R
== s R e = - 3w P s Bt . 1 | 3
Employer's contribution to provident fund A 14091

Employer’s contribution to ESIC
Labour welfare fund contribution for workmen
Total

(b

-

Defined benefit plans

i}  Gratuity (unfunded)
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Group on refirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act
1972. Benefits would be paid at the time of the separation.

| Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year
T in Lakhs

1. Present Value of defin
_2 Addition on Account of Business Combination
3 Interest cost
4 Cument service cost
_5 Pasi service cost

__¢ Liability fransferred In/Acquisitions 15.00
7_Liability Transferred out / Divestment (2.74)
8 Benefits paid directly by employer o le84)
9 Benefits paid - -
#_Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions A =
#_Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 1.60

_#_Actuarial changes arising from chanaes in excerience adjustments {19.15)

#_Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 262.98

It Net asset / (liabllity) recognised In the balance sheet
R in Lakhs
ez

. 1 Present Value of defined benefit obligation atthe end of theyear . {262.98}
2 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -

3 Amount recounised in the balance sheet (262.98)

4 Net |liability|/ asset- Curent N 161.12)

5 Net |liability|/ asset- Non-current (201.86)
I Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year

T in Lakhs
<yl

_1 Current seosi B — . O 4
2 Interest cost on benefit obligation (Net)
3 Total expenses included in employee benefits expense

IV Recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) for the year
2 in Lakhs

_1_Actuarial changes arising from chandes in demographic assumtions == y, -
2

Actuarial chanaes arisint from chanues in financial assumptions — — ~1.60
3 Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments N 119.15)
_4 Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income - I
5 Recognised in other comgrehenslve income {17.55)
V  Malurity profile of defined benefit obligation
2in Lakhs

_1 Within the next 12 months (next annual reportina year)
2 2nd Following Year
3 3rd Followini Year
4 4ih Following year
5 5th Following year
6 Sum of years 6th to 10 years
7 Sum of 11 years and above
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for the year ended March 31, 2025
48 Employee benefits (Contd...)

VI The Principle Actuarial Assumptions used are as follows:

7 % in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars L March 31, 2028
Discount rate 6.54% - 6.82% 7.14%-7.22%
Salary escalation ~10.00% . 8.00%-10.00%
Mortality rate during employment Indiar Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14 {Urban) Moriality 2012-14 (Urban)
Moriality post retirement rate R N.A. N.A,
Rate of Employee Turnover 30.00% - 34.00% o 800%2 30.00%_
For service 4 years and For service 4 years and
L ; N o . L o below 10.00% p.a. betow 10.00% p.a.
In case of Subsidiary - R Retail Ventures Private Limited {upto March 31, 2024) & Histyle Retail Private Limited For service & years and For service 5 years and
above 2.00% p.a. above 2.00% p.a.

Notes:
i} Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
i) The salary escalation rate is arived after taking info consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as, demand and supply in employment market,

i} The aciuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at March 31, 2025. The present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

VIl Sensitivity Analysis:

The sensifivﬂy analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting year, while holding all other
assumptions constant, The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Projected Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one ancther as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Projected Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporiing period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognised in the balance sheeit.

? in Lakhs
| i I As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
‘Change in Assumption ||¢h°"9¢ In Rate Increase in i Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
il : A i b ‘ I _Assumotion
Discount Rate - | (-/+1% |._ = {77208 X 8.47 (1008} __ 11.32
Solary Growth Rate - (-/+1%) [ o 760 I 22 < I .7
Attrition Rate (-/+1%) [ FZO (2.29} 2.38
VIll_Risks assoclated with defined benefit plan
Interest Risk: A fall'in the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher
| orovision. S s )
Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan fiability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase
. in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability. 2 o .
Asset liability matching risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own funds.
Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable fill retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.
¢ Compensated Absences
The employees of the Group are enlitled fo compensated absences as per the policy of the Group.
% in Lakhs

Particulars As al As at

Defined benefit obliciation as at end of the year 120.16 132.42
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49 Related parly fransactions
a  Llist of related parties and relationship
Descrlption of relationship RS

Person having Contro! .n
Close family members of person having control

K_ey Management Personnel

‘Name of Related Paies
ﬂScndeep Runwal

iSubhash Runwal (Father)

1Chanda Runwal (Mother}

gfriyonko Runwal (Spouse)

Saurabh Runwal {Son)

-Sanya Runwal (Daughter)

Sujaia Rao, Director

:Sunil Satvilkar Director (w.e.f. 08/11/2024)

Pallavi Matkari, Director (upto 05/02/2025)

Ashok Ghanshyam Darak, Director (uplo 23/12/2024) _

Sweena Nair, Company Secretary({upto 21/04/2025)

b The following transactions were carried out with the related parlies in the ordinary course of business:

1 Sale of flats/Property/Land

SandeepRunwal
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

2 jSale/pyrchuse of material, Services and fixed assets
Runwal Enterprises Private Limited

3 Sale of Shares

Sandeep Runwal (S.Har—e‘s‘ of Avalor Developers Private Limited}

Wheelabrator Realty Private Limited (Shares of WACL)

4.S_ub- letting Rent Charges
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

§ Reimbursement of expenses (receivable) =
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Runwal Residency Private Limited

6 Business facll_llv services
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

7 Maintenance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

8 Eiyldend on redeemable Preference Shares

Sandeep Runwal
_Privanka Runwal* R
* Amount s less than 500

9 _-Red_emEfTon of OCD
Horizon Projects Private Limited

10 Inferest on Redemption of OCD
‘Horizon Projects Private Limited

11 Security deposit taken

Runwal Foundation

12 _I_n!e?corporulé deposits given
Given
_Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Repaid
Arans Orgachem P_n_vqfe Lirmited

Fuprn Consultancy Frivate Limitad

13 Loun repaid
Anand Developers
Rurmal & Associates
Sondeep Construchons

1.513.31

2,152.10

15.00
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49 Related party transactions

14 Loan given
Given
Sandeep Runwal
Saurabh Runwal
Priyanka Runwal
Sanya Runwol

Repald
Sandesp Runwal
Saurabh Funwal
Priycinke Runwal
Sanya Runwal

15 Brokerage charges _
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP

16 _M:inienancé Service and Property Tax Reimbursment
_Chanda Runwal o i -

Subhash Runwal

17 CSR expenditure

Runwal Foundafion =

18 Advance Salary fo KMP
Pallavi Matkari

19 Other Income/Marketing Income/Relmbursement
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

20 Donafiongiven i
Runwal Foundation __

21 Security de_mslis given

Sandeep Runwal
Subhash Runwal
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

22 Rent Expenses
Chanda S Runwal
Pallavi Matkari
Sandeep Runwal
Subhosh Ruriwal

23 Interest on Loan e
Sandeep Runwal
Saurabh Runwal =

Sanya Runwal . e
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

24 Salary
Sandeep Runwat
Saurabh Runwal
Privanka Runwal
Sanya Runwal
Svjata Rao

-Sweena Nair - -
Ashok Darak
Pallavi Matkari
Sanjay Sharma (wef 23-12-2024)
Nirmala Murali {wef 23-12-2024)

g in Lakhs
c y
1 Inter corporate deposit
Given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 5.643.90
2 Security deposit
laken e
_Runwal Foundation _— 819.95
3 Security Deposit e e
Sandeep Runwal 1 500
Subhash Runwal _ e ———— Uy —— R —— 115,00
_Chanda Runwal a00
Ariane Qrgachem Private Limited s
4 Investment . B N ,
Debentwres - .
Horizon Projects Pvi Lid . 7.000.00
Equity Shares ) S
Wheelaborator Alloy Castings Limited 3,188.30
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49 Related party transactions

T in Lakhs
v

5 Trade receivables
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Sandeep Runwal
Runwal Residency Private Limited

4 Trade payable )
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

7 Maintenance recelvables
Subhash Runwal
Chanda Runwal

8 Interest Recelvable on ICD Given
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

9 Salary Payable
Saurabh Runwal
Sanyg R_u'nw(ll
Priyanka Runwal 1 et e
Sufota Roo ' '
Swesin Mair e

10 Dividend Payable
Sandeep Runwal
Priyanka Runwal*

* Amount is less than 500

11 Advance to KMP . . " - Y
Svjata Rao o o 1l .24

12 Lease Rent payable
Subhash Runwal
Sandeep Runwal
Chanda Runwal

13 Other Advances
Subhash Runwai

6.00

14 Loan & Advances
Laygble
Anand Developers
Runwal & Associates
Sandeep Constructions

15 Loan Given
Saurabh Sandeep Runwal

16 Other Recelvﬂ;le
Pallavi Matkari

1.00

17 Capltal Advance
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

I 15000

g in Lakhs

Compensation of key manogemen?personnel of the Company

it ti relationshi
Short-term employee benefits
Pef-employment pension and medical benefits®
Gthe! long term benefits*
femination benefiy
Shate based payments

"+ Provision for graiuity and leave encashment benefits are determined on actuarial valuation basis, Hence the same is not seperately reported here for KMPs.

Total compensation paid fo key management personnel . = . B
The fransactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial yeor through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and setilement
occurs in cash.

v
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50 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(A) Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for :

2 in Lakhs
As af As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 fidm.on Seftled/Reversed March 31, 2025
In respect of e I I S . . -
income Tax {refer note (i) to (iv) below) . | _ 21,715.35 . 27.720.39 { {157.86) 49,277.88
GST (refer note {vi} & (vii} below) | 5921 .05‘I 1113281 (3,805.86) 3,228.47
Excise and Service Tax {refer note (v) below) 468.78 | 359.40 | 109.57) 718.61
Total 28,105.18 29,193.07 (4,073.29) 53,224.96
2 in Lakhs
As at : | As at
Particulars Maich 31,2023 Addition Seltled/Reversed Meireh 31, 2024
Inrespect of : o
Income Tax (refer note (i) to (iv) below) R 601504 15,700.31 o - N
GST (refer note (vi) & (vil) below) 3.043.02 291334 (35.31) _ 1.05
Excise and Service Tax (refer note (v) below) 468,78 S 3 Il 468.78
Total 9.526.84 18,613.65 (35.31) 28,105.18
Notes:

i} Income tax demand u/s 143(3) includes disallowance of expenses debited to P& L A/c on account of 80IB(10) for assessment year from 2000-01 1o 2004-05 amounfing to Rs.120.90
lakhs against which appeal was fited with High Court. The same is opted for assessment under Vivad Se Vishwas in the current period and demand is settled.

i} Income tax demand u/s 143(3) includes deemed rent additions against deemed let out properties and sundry creditors additions of Rs.677.96 lakhs for AY 2015-16 & 2016-1 7against
which appeal is filed with CIT(A)}-52.

il Income tax demand u/s 143(3) includes disallowance against suspicious purchase and exempt income additions of Rs.82.46 lakhs for AY 2018-19 & 2020-21 against which appeal is
filed with CIT{A)-52.

iv) The Income-Tax authorities {‘the department’) had conducied search activity during the month of October 2023 at some of the premises, site and residences of few of the
employees of the Group. The Group extended full cooperation to the Income-tax officials during the search and provided required details, clarifications, and documents. The
liabiliies as assessed by the department is Rs. 27,720.39 lakhs for various financial years which the holding company has appealed against with CIT (A).

v} Service taxnofice is also issued by Commissioner of Service tax and demand is raised for short payment of service tax on renting of immovable property at Rmall Mulund and also
for FY 2011-12 and 2012-13 showing the payment wrongly under as input tax credit availed instead of showing it as Service tax paid and for few of them an appeal is also filed in
CESTAT.

vi) GST demand is against disallowance of transifional credit under SGST for FY 2017-18. SGST appeal pending with Joint Commissioner Appeal. CGST show cause notice received and
reply filed.

Vi) During previous year the subsidiary company (R Mall Developers Private Limited) has considered the GST notice amount of Rs.1071.63 Lakhs for the ITC mismatch cases, 241.02 lakhs
for the renting of Immovable property at R-city Mall and notice of amount of Rs.298.81 lakhs for the reimbursement of Water and electricity charges. During the year a demand Rs.
209.62 lakhs has been raised for ITC mismatch for the financial year 2019-20 and interest to the extent of Rs.671.20 lakhs. During the year a sum of Rs.512.81 lakhs has been paid
under protest and liability of Rs.298.81 lakhs has been reduced on account of the company succeeding in the case.

Future cash flows relafing to above are determinable only on the receipt of judgment/decision from relevant forum/authorities.

vii) The Group, after considering all available records and facts known to it, is of the view that there is no material adverse impact on the financial position of the Group and no

material adjustments are required to these Audited financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 in this regard.

(B} Leases
Operdating lease commiiments — Group as lessee
i) The Group has taken Land and Building on leave and license basis. {refer nole 59)

(C

~—

Capital Commitments & Other Commitments

i} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for € 4,848.29 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 and % 26.35 Lakhs for the
year ended March 31, 2024.

i) The Group enters into construction contracts with its vendors. The final amounts payable under such contracts will be based on actual measurements and negotiated rates, which
are determinable as and when the work under the said contracts is completed.

iy The Group has entered into joint development agreements with owners of land for its construction and development. Under the agreements the Group is required to give share in
built up area from such developments in exchange of undivided share in land as stipulated under the agreements to the owners of the land and to MHADA.

(D) As per the contractual arangements with brokers, brokerage is payable to them on the units sold through then only when 10% of sale consideration of the respective unit is received.
Hence, such brokerage is confingent in naiure as at March 31, 2025 amounfing to ¥ 267.48 Lakhs {Previous year € 814.75 lakhs).

(E) The Group is a party fo various legal proceedings in normal course of business (including cases pending before RERA authorities) and does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have any adverse effect on its financial conditions, results of the operations or cashflow. Amounts of such disputes are unascertainable.

(F) The Group is contesting the demands and the management is of the view that it has o good case with likelihood of fiability / any loss arising out of these tax matters being remote.
Accordingly, pending settlement of the tax dispute, no adjustment has been made in the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025. The Management, after considering
all available-records-and facts known to it, is of the view that there is no material-adverse impact on the financial-pesition of the Group and-ne-material adjustments are required to
these Audited financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025 in this regard.

(G
(H

—

The group has stamp duty demand of  39.85 lakhs. In view of the management, no provision is required to be made as on March 31, 2025,

=

The Group has implemented the decision given in the Supreme Court Judgment in case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
()West Bengal” and the related circular (Circutar No. C-1/1(33)2019/ Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation in
relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of “basic wages” of the relevant employees for the purposes of detfermining contribution to provident fund under the
Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 w.e.f. June 1, 2019. In the assessment of the management, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant
impact in respect of earlier years.

The Group will coniinue to monitor and evaluate its position based on future events and developments.

(1} The matter of the levy of service tax on renting of immovable property has been subjudice. The case of Home Solution Retailers of India and others v/s Union of India and others Delhi],
had challenged the constitutional vaiidity of Section 65(105) (zzzz) of the Finance Act, 1994 as amended by the Finance Act, 2010. Citing the reason of the maitter being subjudice,
many licensees had not paid the service tax component billed to them and accordingly in such cases, the Group too, has not deposited the service tax with the Government.
Honorable Supreme Court in the case of appeal filed by Retailers Association of India (RA!) vide it's order dated 14th October, 2011, as an interim measure, directed association
members to deposit fifty percent of the service tax dues for the period upto 30th September, 2011 with the authorities and provide surety for balance amount. The surety amount would
be payable on the pronouncement of final verdict. Many of the licensees of the Group are members of the association. The Group has not collected and paid service fax of Rs. 241.02
Lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs. 241.02 Lakhs). The Group does hot expect the outcome of the matter fo have any adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations.

()) The Group had paid excise duty/CVD duty of Rs. 512.81 lakhs on various construction materials such as cement, steel ete. during the period 24 july 2006 to 17 March 2011 which were
used by the Group for construction of the mall. Subsequently, the Group availed the credit of the same in the service tax returns filed for the period Oclober 2013 to March 2014. A
submission was made on the basis of legal advice obtained by management on allowability of CENVAT credit of Rs. 512.81 lakhs against letter issued by authority in January 2018 to
reverse the same basis the amendment in definifion of "input” under CENVAT rules. During the process of investigation by the authorities, the Group had paid an amount of Rs. 512.81
lakhs under protest.
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51 Segment Reporting

(a) Description of segments and principal activities
The reporfable segments of the Group's are ‘Real Estate Business', 'Leasing of premises’ and 'Power Generation’,

The segments are largely organised and managed separately according 1o the organisation structure that is designed based on the nature of business. Operating segments are
reported in @ manner consistent with the intemnal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM").

Description of each of the reportable segments for all periods presented, is as under:

i)  Real Estate Business: This Segment of the business includes income from sale of residential units.

il Leasing of premises: This Segment of the business inciudes rental income from R Mall Mulund, R Malt Odean, R Mall Thane, R City Gharkopar & R Square Andheri.
i} Power Generation Business: This Segment of the business includes income from sale of Electricity.

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Earﬁculars Total Real Estate Business Leasing of Premises | Power Generation
Revenues from exfernol cusfomers 4,323.49 16.666.53 JP656%6 -
Intersegment revenue - - -
Total Revenue 1,16,323.49 76,666.53 -
Segment results before exceptional items, interest, tax and depreciation; ,-M T T4g 29426 21,074.30 | B SE3A
Reconciliation to profit/{loss) for the year: ! —

Less: Financa cosfs ‘ e 117,262.95) | (1,383 7)1-.— {15,914.92) . (148¢6)
Less: Depreciation and amortisation (11,560.25) (963.07) (10,597.00} | _{0.18}
Add: Share of profit/{loss) of joint ventures and associates e

Profit before exceptional items and tax - o 17,471.06

Add: Exceptional fems

FProfitbeforetax _17471.06 I
Add:TaxCredit - T 3,700 34 B I | o
Net profit/(loss) for the year - . 1374172 ! 1 |

}arﬂculurs : Total I Real Estate Business Leasing of Premises 1' Power Generafion

L o | | "

Seament assets | 11,43,279.34 | 7.06,510.33 4,36,769.0t | =
Unallocable assets | 5598692 | - - -
Totalassets : mw - | 11,99,266.26 | 7.06,510.33 1___ 4,36,769.01 -
Segment assets include: Equity accounted investments A - =" - -
Segment liabilities | 7.53,953.44 6,28.62391 | /25,32%.53 -
Unallocable liabiliies _— 1,23,775.73 - -
Total liabilities 8,77.729.17. 62862391 1,25329.53 =
for the year ended March 31, 2024 . N
Pmﬂcuhrs = Tofal “ Real Estate Business Lmlne of Premises I Power Generation
Revenues from exfemol customers | 53,943. 77 25,866. 55 28 01 7 54 59.68
Interseament revenue : - | =l =
Tolal Revenue | 53,943.77 | 25,866.55 28,017.54 | 59.68
Segment resulis before exceptional items, interest, tax and depreciation: | 23,330.24 | 7,398.55 19.334.87 | (3,40
Reconciliation to profit/{loss) for_the year: = e | |

Less: Finance costs (12,255.76} | [1,763 Mo31533) |

Less: Depreciafion and amortisation — o . ' .110,323.90) | (3t | [9.788.69] | 20.66)
Add: Share of profit/(loss| of joint ventures and associates | 495.38 | | | -
Profit before exceptional items and tax | 1,245.96 | = | - -
Add: Excetstional items 1,15,929.51 = = -
Profit before tax | 1,17,175.47 - - -
Add: Tax Credit___ | 3,187.32 = | -
Net profit/(loss) for the year 1,20,362.79 - [ - -

i = = = . | 1' : £
IPari‘IcuIars Total II Reai Estate Business Leasing of Premises I Power Generalion
Segment assets | 9.,59.090. 14 - 761318.4 __r o o 19707577 | o 69571
Unallocable assets | . 4844558 | | -
Total assets R | 100753672 | 7,61,318.9_6@( y 1,97,075.77 | __695.71
Seament assets include: Equity accounted investments | o - -] -l -
Seament liabilities | 5,79.731.96 | 3,89,983.06 1,88,345.61 | 1,403.29
Unallocable fiabilties _1.20016.03 1 - )
Total liabilities - - 6,99.747.99 3,89,983.06 | 1,88,345.61 1.,403.29

, Q/ 'f’
\’)& \
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52 Revenue from Confracts with Customers
(a) The amount of ® 75,071.45 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 23,536.43 Lakhs) recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting year has been recognised as revenue during
the year ended March 31, 2025.
(b} Significant changes in contract asset and contract liakiiities balances are as follows:
Zin Lakhs
—
For the year ended for the year ended
Particul
e March 31, 2026

Contract liabllity

Al the beginning of the reporting year - Advances from customers including amount payable towards cancelied flats 1 d 2,7C,375.07
_Addiition on account of Business Combination (refer note 47) | -

Amount received during the year 1,47,870.76 1,10,840.20
Amount recognised as revenve during the year . (75,071.45). 123,536.43|
At the end of the reporting year 3,43,174.38 2,70,375.07

e e ——— T in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
& s March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract Assets
Al the beginning of the year - Joint Development Agreement . 706275 844498
Change due o collection = =
Change due 1o revenue recorded . (1,004.72) 11,382.23|
At the end of the year | . SM_ 7.062.75
% in Lakhs
For the year endled For the year ended
.Parﬁculars HMarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract liability
At the becinning of the year - Joint Development Agreement | 7062_7§ 5.444.98
Change due to collection : } = 08 — -
Change due fo revenue recorded o {1.004:72) 11,382.23]
At the end of the year | ieﬂlg& 7,062.75

{c) Contract liabiliies represent amounts collected from customers based on contractual milestones pursuant fo agreements executed with such customers for construction and sale
of residential units. The terms of agreements executed with customers require the customers to make payment of consideration as fixed in the agreement on achievement of
contractual milestones though such milestones may not necessarily coincide with the point in time at which the Group transfers confrol of such units to the customer. The Group is
liable for any structural or other defects in the residential units as per the terms of the agreements executed with customers and the applicable laws and regulations.

{d}) The Group expects fo satisfy the said performance obligations when (or as) the underlying real estate projects to which such performance obligations relates are completed. Such
real estate projects are in various stages of development as at March 31, 2025.

(e) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group revenue from confracts with customers by timing of fransfer of goods or services.
|, s Fot the year ended for the year ended
[FRhculm March 31,2025 Merch31, 2026
Timing of fransfer of goods or services \ -
Revenue from goods or services transferred fo customers at o point in fime i 11531877 52,561.54
Revenue from goods or services fransferred to customers over the period of time 1l 1,004.7% 1,382.23
{f) Assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fuilfil a confract with a customer
2 in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
faficulors March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
_Brokerage costs pertaining to sale of residential units _ 770 . 360.77 _
Deferred Brokeraue Quistanding at Balance Sheet Date 14,652.94 13,043.57

The transaction price of the remaining performance obligations as at March 31, 2025 ¥ 4,44,198.59 Iékhs {Previous year ¥ 4,01,722.90 lakhs). The same is expected to be recognised
within 1 to 5 years.

(9

th

Revenue from major customer [more than 10% of turnover)
Revenue from no customer constitute more than 10% of the fotal revenue of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2025 (Previous year 2 NIL).
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53 Fair values Disclosure

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between market participants at the

measurement date, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value of cash and shori-term deposits, trade and other short ferm receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other financial institutions
approximate their camying amounts largely due fo the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by vatuation technique:
Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:nputs are other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs that are not based on observable market data unobservable inputs. Fair value are determined in whole or in part using a vatuation model based on assumptions that are
neither supported by prices from observable current market iransactions in the same instrument not are they based on available market data.

a The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2025 is as follows :

Financial assets
Non-current

Investments

Otherfinancial assets
Current
Investments

Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents

_Bank balances other than above
Loans

Other Financial Assets
Ioa
Financial liabilities

Non-current
Bomrowings

Current

Borowings S
Lease Liabilities

Jrode Payables R I

Other Financial Liabiities
Total

b The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 is as follows :

2 in Lakhs

2 in Lakhs

JHinancialassets
Non-current

———y

Investments - _.3,532.92 440,03 3.972.95
Other financial assets | - 3:431.90 3,431.90
Current | o
Investments — | . 7,000.00 { 7,000.00
Trade Receivables - 3,524.53 i 3,524.53
Cash and Cash Equivalents — — 1 x - 8,860.15
Bank balances other than gbove _|' N - i 1,201.39 |
Loans - - 1906113
Other Financial Assets — — = = —1 1.891.76 1,891.76
Total o - 3,532.92 46,110.89 49,643.81
Financial liabilities e - S [ — —
Non-current I - - — _
Bomowings — - - 2,46,991.70 2,46,991.70
Lease Liabilities o —— = —- | =
Current = |

___Borrowings e - 1 . = 15,085.86 15,085.86
Lease Liabilities o o 1 . = . 102.91 102.91
Trade Payables o - ' | 20,183.42 20,183.42
Qther Financial Ligbilities _ _ | - 18,163.82 18,163.82
Total - - 3,00,527.71 3,00,527.71
Fair Value Hierarchy:

2 in Lakhs

Assets measured at fair value
Invesiments

Levell
level2
[Level 3
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53 Fair values Disclosure (Contd...)

54

The foliowing method/assumptions were used to esfimate the fair values:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, frade receivables, Inter corporate deposits, short term bomowings, trade payables and
other financial liabilities/assets approximate their camying amounis largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value of mutual funds is based on the iatest available Net Asset Value (NAV) as at the reporting date.

The fair values for security deposits approximates its carrying amount as the same are repayable on demand.

Fair Value of financlal assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost
Current loans measured at amortised cost includes inter corporate loans, the fair value of which is as stated below:

2 in Lakhs
Ty As ol
Particulan March 31,2025 Maich 31, 2024
Loans 13.062.54 19,061.13

As loans are current in nature, fair value of inter corporate loans given are considered fo be at camying amount.

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capitat includes issued equily capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
parent. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is fo maximise the shareholder value.

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management
monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Group's manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenanis. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group's may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group’s monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Group's includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued
operations.

—— R in Lakhs
Asal As at

Particulars Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Borowings (Notes 25 and 29| i 7= 2,62,077.56 _
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 8.860.15)
Net debt (A} 2,53,217.41
Equity (refer note 23| 2,191.37
Other equity (refer note 24) _ | e 3,05,356.97
Totalequity (BY e _.3,07.548.34
Gearing ratio {A/B) 82.33%

In order fo achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately cail loans and borowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025.
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55 Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group operations and to provide
guarantees to support its operations. The Group principal financial assets include loans and advances, frade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents ihat derive directly
from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group senior management ensures fhgi the
Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's
policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

{1} Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will uctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, curency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include deposits, FVTOCH investments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carmying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets
and liabilities of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in caleulating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed inferest bearing investments

because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floafing interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of
fluctuations in the interest rates.

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest rate risk due to which the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments fluctuate because of fluciuations in the interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate fo the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other posk-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets
and liabilities of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

2 in Lakhs
Fof the yadr ended For the year ended
Particulars | March 31, 2025 ! Marech 31, 2024
!' 1% increase | 1% decrease _! 1%increase 1% decrease

Financial Liabllifies iy S n) ' [
Vcricble rate ins}rumenfs ) - ol - o

Borrowings (331146 331165 (2,638.17) 2,638.17
Cash flow sensltivity (net) {3,311.65) 3,311.465 (2.638.17) 2,638.17

Exposure tfo Interest rate risk

In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate
interest rafe risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio. According fo the Company interest rate risk
exposure is only for floating rate borowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s inferest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as

follows.
% in Lakhs
Particulars IR (]
‘March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financlal ltabilities =il
Variable rate instruments (Term loan & Bank overdraft) T 331.164.53 2,63817.05
Fixed rale insruments (Term loan & Lease liabilfies) | 453.48 630.14
I 33161801 2,64,447.19
Financial assets | w———
...__Fixed rate instruments (Bank deposits & Loars) | 31,725.90. 25,234.67
' 31,725.90 25,234.67

Foreign currency risk
Curmrency risk is not material, as the Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have significant exposure in foreign currency,

(i) Creditrisk
Crediit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer confract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities {primarily frade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.

Exposure to credit risk
The camying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

a) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables of the Group comprises of receivables towards sale of properties, rental receivables and other receivables.
- Recelvables towards sale of property
The Group is not substantially exposed to credit risk as property is delivered on payment of dues.
Receivables towards rental receivables
The Group is not substantially exposed to credit risk as Group. collects security deposits from lessee.
- Other Receivables
Credit risk is managed as per the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Qutstanding customer receivables are
regularty monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.
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55 Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (Cont..)

As per simplified approach, the Group makes provision of expected credit iosses on trade receivables 1o mitigate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate provision
at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk

Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule
Balance as at March 31, 2025

2 in Lakhs

NotDve
Less than 6 months T
é months - 1 year
I2yeas T
2-3 years .
More than 3 years T

“Allowance for significant increase in credit risk /credit
impaired

Total

Balance as af March 31, 2024

T in Lakhs

Not Due B 596.14 - 0.17 - 596.31
Less than  months B - 109457 | - 31.66 - 12623
4 monihs - 1 year i a0 3081 |~ AL - 557.72
1-2years - - 29378 92.12 91.11 - 47701
2-3years N T T T iass 127.63 73.29 - TTTTTTTTRED
More than 3 years B . 37541 ' 21233 | 745.28 - 133302
Allowance for significant Increase in credit risk /credit | - - . - (880.936)
impaired |

Total - [ 2,963.98 462.89 978.62 5 3,524.53

The movement in the provision for expected credit loss are as follows:
% in Lakhs

Opening balance —, 118 [451.63)

_On account of business combination . (553.94)
_Changes during the year 124.61

Closing balance

b

—

Financial instruments and bank deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with the Group's policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit fimits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group's Board of
Directors on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make
payments.

The Group's maximum exposure to credil risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025.
¢} Loans

The loans and advances also includes loans in the nature of advances for project and hence risk on them is minimal. Based on the above factors and historical data, loss on
collection of receivables is not material and hence no provision was made in respect of these loans.

T in Lakhs

Loans other than project advances 13,062.54 1,061 .13

Expected credit loss assessment of loans as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Considering the nature of the business, the Group has a policy to provide loans to its group entities for undertaking projects, based on its primary business model of undertaking
project developments. The loans given to these entfities are repayable on demand and there is no past history for any default / delay / iregularity in repayments based on demands
made. Moreover, all the group enities to whom loans have been advanced, have substantial potential in the projects to repay the loan based on the valuation of such entities
and their activities are controlled and managed by the Group. Accordingly, in view of such control over operations and underlying security of the project / assets, these loans are
considered adequately secured for repayments, except in cases where the independent valuation of underlying projects warrant provision for impairment.
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55 Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (Cont..)

(il Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to setile or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Group's policy on kiquidity risk is to maintain sufficient liquidity in the form of
cash and investiment in liquid mutual funds to meet the Group's operating requirements with an appropriate level of headroom. in addition, processes and policies related to such
risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Group’s net liquidity posifion through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group has

access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

Maturlty profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financiai liabilifies at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

2 in Lakhs
Carrying
As af March 31. 2025 ARt On Demand iess than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings (refer note 25 and 29) | 3,31.148.97 . 13,860.77 1,49,357.67 1,67,930.53 3,31,148.97
Lease Liabilities {refer note 26 and 30) 280.97 . 163.06 117.91 - 280.97
Trade Payabiles [refer note 31) | 22,556%3 . - ! 265517 - - 22,555.73
Other Financial Liabilities {refer note 48,528.27 - 48,528.27 - 48,528.27
2. N s
Total 4,02,513.94 =0 85,107.83 1,49,475.58 1,67,930.53 4,02,513.94 |
2 in Lakhs
Carrylng |
As ot March 31, 2024 nt | On Demand | less than 1 year 1to 5 years More than § years Total
Borrowings (refer note 25 and 29) 2,62,077.56 - 15,007.50 2,28,815.42 18,254.64 2,62,077.56
Lease Liabilities (refer note 26 and 30) 102.91 3.47 99.44 - - 102.91
Trade Payables frefer note 31| T20.183.42 - 20,183.42 - - T 2018342
Other Financial Liabilities (refer note 18,163.82 - 18,163.82 - - 18,163.82
32| | |
Total 3,00,527.71 3.47 5345418 2.28.815.42 18.254.64 3,00,527.71
Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:
2 in Lakhs
Asal As af
Particul
e . March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Amount unpaid as at year end - principal 4,33504 662.08
Amount unpaid as at year end - interest 1608 527
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 il il
(the ‘Act')along with the amounis of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making paymeni {which have been paid but beyond the Nﬁ Nil
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Act.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. _ 34.38 20.30
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as il Ni!
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the Act.

Disclosure of outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise under frade payables is based on the information available with the Company regarding
the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, Outstanding includes dues fo micro and
small enterprises on account of deficiency in service/ products/ documents. In such cases, interest has not been provided on these overdue amounts.
This fact has also been disclosed in the MSME form | {return) filed on half yearly basis by the Company with ROC. This has been relied upon by the auditor.

QGHI &

/e ..
f'*of)/ o
2l 5
\ "'\ '5'
e D

N
&0 Acco®




Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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56 Leases

Asset given under operating lease
The Group has recovered % 26,736.24 Lakhs rent from the Customers. Details of rental income recognized during the year in respect of this is given below:

Ti in Lckhs
i}

,q_ i L | S S S
fl"_,-_]?_,. e Ui ) o i i 'd""’l’l

24
24,41 5.29
24,415.2%

Rent income recognized during the yearL
Total

Asset taken under operating leass

(i) The Group has taken Land and office premises on leave and license basis.

Details of rental expense recognized during the year in respect of this lease is given below:

% in Lakhs

Con’yan vclu of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year
Total

(i) Analysis of Lease liability:

Addiition on account of Business Combination {refer note 49)
Addition during the year

Interest Cost

Cash outflow towards payment of lease liabilities

Delehon during the year on account of 1erm|ncmon of lease aqreemenis

Closing Lease Liabllifles

(ili) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities {on undiscounted basis)

Less than 1 year
Between 1-5 years
More than 5 years o

(iv) Lease liabilities included in statement of financial position
T in Lakhs

Curmrent
Non - Current

{v) Impact on statement of profit and loss

Interest on lease liabilities — I .
Depreciation on rinht of use assets . —-—

Net impact on profit before tax — = —

Deferred tax - Charge/ {credit) — )

Net impact on profit after fax
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57 Exceplional ltems
2 in Lakhs
o, BLLY

Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation ; |
Fair Value of Existing Ownership Inferest of 50.00% in R Retail Ventures Private Limited as on date of acquisition -4 57,508.63
Value of Investment

- {5,118.39)
Gain on Fair Valuation on account Of Business Combination of R Retail Ventures Private Limited _ . - 523%024
Fair Value of Existing Ownership Interest of 49.75% in R Mall Developers Private Limifed_cs on date of acquisition - 82,102.53
Value of investment - {16,291.19}
Gailn on Fair Valuation on account Of Business Combination of R Mall Developers Private Limiled | - 65811.34
'}Eu_ir Value of Investment in Equity Shares of Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited ! - !__ - w3,l88.3]
Value of Investment - {5,460.38)
Loss recognised on account of change in shareholding of Investment in Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Lirmited {refer note below) - I 12,272.07)
Total - 1,15,929.51

58 Construction Work In Progress includes

% in Lakhs

Fnance Cos!
Land & TOR
Materials & Labour

3,66,131.38

59 Trade payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025

2 in Lakhs

_1 Undlisputed MSME__

.2 Undisputed Ofthers
Disputed dues - MSME

4 Discuted dues - Others
Total

As at March 31, 2024

2 in Lakhs

859 ] 408,10
1,292.17 13,847.56

Disputed dues - MSME - [
Disputed dues - Others - =
Total 2,411.93 7,701.23 |

1,589.:2_[ 1,300.76 1,252.42 | 14,255.66
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Runwal Developers Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

62 Other Statutory Information

63

1

2

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

The following table summarises the tfransactions with the struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For the year ended March 31, 2025

2 in fakhs
Flame of struck of Company Nature of Transaction Relationship Amount of Transacfion  Oulstanding Balance
during the vear Receiavble
Broadview Entertainment Pvt Ltd Leave & License Receivable Customer - 047
Broadview Enterfainment Pvt Ltd Common Area Mainienance Customer - 2.35
Receivable
Foresight Vision Care Company Pvt Ltd Security deposits towards shop Customer - (13.32)
‘rental
Urban Foods Pvt Ltd Security deposits towards shop Customer - (17.45)
rental
Panoramic Holidays Ltd Security deposits towards shop Customer - {0.88)
rental
Digipace Consulting (OPC) Pvt Lid ‘Brokerage towards sale of flats Service provider 1.06
For the year ended March 31, 2024
S [ . % in lakhs
[Name of struck of Company Nature of Transaction Relationship Ameount of T 1 Ouistanding Bal
duting the vear Seselavbie/ (Pavabie)
Broadview Entertainment Pvt Ltd Leave & License Receivable Customer - 0.47
Broadview Entertainment Pvt Ltd Common Area Maintenance Customer - 2.35
Receivable
Foresight Vision Care Company Pvt Ltd Security deposits towards shop Customer - {13.32)
rental
Urban Foods Pvt Ltd Security deposits towards shop Customer - {17.45)
rental
Panoramic Holidays Ltd Security deposits towards shop Customer - (0.88)
rental

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

The Group, ifs joint veniures & associates have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall

i} directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identfified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) except:
a. During the previous year parent (Runwal Developers Private Limited) advanced an amount of 29,515 Lakhs as Inter Corporate Deposit and (Sister Company) R Retail
Ventures Private Limited advanced an amount of 28,000 Lakhs as inter Corporate Deposit o Subsidiary Company (Galleria Retail Private Limited) in the month of
October/November 2023.
During the previous year Subsidiary Company (Galleria Retail Private Limited) acquired shares of Subsidiary from White Harbour Investment Limited {Ultimate Beneficiary) on
October 30, 2023 by utilising the above funds.

ii)  or provide any guarantee, security or the like o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Group, its joint venture & associates have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign enfiies (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Group shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) except
a. During the previous year Subsidiary Company (Galleria Retail Private Limited) received Inter Corporate Deposit from parent (Runwal Developers Private Limited) amounting
to 29,515 Lakhs and (Sister Company) R Retail Ventures Private Limited amounting to 28,000 Lakhs and acquired shares of R Retail Ventures Private Limited from White
Harbour Invstment Limited (Ultimate Beneficiary) on October 30, 2023 by utilising the above funds.

i) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group does not have any such fransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sumendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Group except for those mentioned in note 3 (i) and 6 {i).
The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Group has availed various borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of curent assets. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by

The Parent and Subsidiaries have complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of ayers) Rules, 2017.

Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") nofifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) noftified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annuat reporting periods beginning on or after Aprit 01, 2024,

On September 09, 2024, the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments 1o Ind AS 116 concerning sale and leaseback transactions.

The amendments fo Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine
a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the
currency not being exchangeable into the other curency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Aprit 2025, When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments did not have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code
has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been
issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Amalgamation of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited with Runwal Developers Private Limited

During the previous year, the Board. of Directors of Runwal Developers Private Limited (“Holding Company” or “Transferee Company”), in their meeting held on May 08, 2023,
considered and approved a scheme of amalgamation of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited (Subsidiary or “Transferor Company”} into and with the Holding Company and their
respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other rules and regulations framed thereunder (“Scheme").

The Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT') vide ils order dated February 13, 2024, have approved the Scheme of Amalgamation {the “Scheme") of Dhruva
Woollen Mills Private Limited with the Holding Company with appointed date of April 01, 2023, under section 230 to 232 and other applicabte provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the rules framed thereunder. The said Scheme has been effective from March 11, 2024, on compliance of all the conditions precedent mentioned therein. Consequently,
above mentioned subsidiary of the Holding Company got amalgamated wiih the Company w.e.f. April 01, 2023.

Amalgamation of Galleria Retail Private Limited with R Retail Ventures Private Limited

During the year, the Board of Directors of R Retail Private Limited (“Transferee Company”), in their meeting held on May 06, 2024, considered and approved a scheme of
amalgamation of Gatleria Retail Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) into and with the Transferee Company and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 o
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations} Rules, 2016 and other rules and reguiations
framed thereunder ("Scheme").

Events occuring after Balance Sheet Date
The Group has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date till the date ai which the financial statements were available to be issued and determined that there are no
material items to disclose other than those disclosed above.

Previous period figures have been re-grouped and rearanged whenever necessary to conform to cumrent period preparation.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Singhi & Co. Runwal Developers Limited
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